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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
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(Amendment No. 1)
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x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has
been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer  ¨   Accelerated filer  x
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 1 (the Amendment) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2013 (the Form
10-Q), originally filed by Parker Drilling Company on August 7, 2013, is being filed solely for the purpose of including corrected Exhibits
31.1 and 31.2, each of which inadvertently refers to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013
instead of the quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2013. Except as described above, no other changes
have been made to the Form 10-Q. This Amendment does not amend, update or change the financial statements or disclosures in the Form
10-Q and does not reflect events occurring after the filing of the Form 10-Q.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in Thousands)
 

 
June 30, 

2013  
December 31, 

2012
 (Unaudited)   

ASSETS    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 69,608  $ 87,886
Accounts and notes receivable, net of allowance for bad debts of $12,642 and $8,117 at June 30,
2013 and December 31, 2012 251,440  168,562
Rig materials and supplies 39,229  28,860
Deferred costs 10,822  1,089
Deferred income taxes 16,411  8,742
Other tax assets 13,722  33,524
Assets held for sale 8,656  6,800
Other current assets 19,818  12,821

Total current assets 429,706  348,284
Property, plant and equipment less accumulated depreciation and amortization of $1,061,845 and
$1,029,712 at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 852,813  789,123
Deferred income taxes 107,957  95,295
Other noncurrent assets 46,061  23,031

Total assets $ 1,436,537  $ 1,255,733
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY    

Current liabilities:    
Current portion of long-term debt $ 10,000  $ 10,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 169,130  137,746
Accrued income taxes 6,975  4,120

Total current liabilities 186,105  151,866
Long-term debt 589,147  469,205
Other long-term liabilities 22,743  23,182
Long-term deferred tax liability 31,306  20,847
Contingencies (Note 11) —  —
Stockholders’ equity:    

Common stock 19,995  19,818
Capital in excess of par value 651,535  646,217
Accumulated other comprehensive income (564)  —
Accumulated deficit (65,740)  (74,631)

Total controlling interest stockholders’ equity 605,226  591,404
Noncontrolling interest 2,010  (771)

Total equity 607,236  590,633
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,436,537  $ 1,255,733

See accompanying notes to the unaudited consolidated condensed financial statements.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share and Weighted Average Shares Outstanding)
(Unaudited)

 

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2013  2012  2013  2012

Revenues $ 226,001  $ 178,925  $ 393,156  $ 355,494
Expenses:        

Operating expenses 143,549  104,526  260,595  199,458
Depreciation and amortization 32,280  27,959  61,792  55,578

 175,829  132,485  322,387  255,036
Total operating gross margin 50,172  46,440  70,769  100,458
General and administration expense (22,378)  (7,420)  (35,261)  (12,917)
Gain on disposition of assets, net 517  1,368  1,665  1,860
Total operating income 28,311  40,388  37,173  89,401
Other income and (expense):        

Interest expense (10,741)  (8,925)  (20,747)  (16,962)
Change in fair value of derivative positions 17  38  54  (11)
Interest income 2,203  53  2,251  79
Loss on extinguishment of debt —  (1,649)  —  (1,649)
Other (183)  20  (56)  36

Total other expense (8,704)  (10,463)  (18,498)  (18,507)
Income before income taxes 19,607  29,925  18,675  70,894
Income tax expense 11,233  9,817  9,729  24,460
Net income 8,374  20,108  8,946  46,434
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest 93  25  73  (41)
Net income attributable to controlling interest $ 8,281  $ 20,083  $ 8,873  $ 46,475
Basic earnings per share $ 0.07  $ 0.17  $ 0.07  $ 0.40
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.07  $ 0.17  $ 0.07  $ 0.39
        

Number of common shares used in computing earnings per
share:        

Basic 119,483,780  117,410,212  119,177,431  117,129,364
Diluted 121,860,011  118,526,879  121,498,223  118,623,037

See accompanying notes to the unaudited consolidated condensed financial statements.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2013  2012  2013  2012

        

Comprehensive income (loss):        
Net income $ 8,281  $ 20,083  $ 8,873  $ 46,475
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:        

Foreign exchange translation losses and other (564)  —  (564)  —
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax: (564)  —  (564)  —
Comprehensive income 7,717  20,083  8,309  46,475
Comprehensive (income)/loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (30)  —  (30)  —
Comprehensive income attributable to controlling interest $ 7,687  $ 20,083  $ 8,279  $ 46,475

See accompanying notes to the unaudited consolidated condensed financial statements.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2013  2012
Cash flows from operating activities:    

Net income $ 8,946  $ 46,434
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from operating activities:    
Depreciation and amortization 61,792  55,578
Loss on extinguishment of debt —  1,649
Gain on disposition of assets (1,665)  (1,860)
Deferred income tax expense 1,800  10,432
Expenses not requiring cash 7,989  11,789
Changes in current assets and liabilities    

Change in accounts receivable (32,285)  9,161
Change in other assets 6,711  (7,138)
Change in accrued income taxes 2,179  923
Change in liabilities (9,543)  (31,437)

Net cash provided by operating activities 45,924  95,531
    
Cash flows from investing activities:    

Capital expenditures (63,537)  (109,531)
Proceeds from the sale of assets 2,901  2,340
Acquisition of ITS, net of cash acquired (117,991)  —

Net cash used in investing activities (178,627)  (107,191)
    

Cash flows from financing activities:    
Proceeds from issuance of debt 125,000  130,000
Repayments of senior notes —  (122,852)
Repayments of term loan (5,000)  (12,000)
Payments of debt issuance costs (5,386)  (3,537)
Payments of debt extinguishment costs —  (402)
Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation (189)  49

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 114,425  (8,742)
    
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (18,278)  (20,402)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 87,886  97,869
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 69,608  $ 77,467
    
Supplemental cash flow information:    

Interest paid $ 21,823  $ 16,989
Income taxes paid $ 8,585  $ 28,307

See accompanying notes to the unaudited consolidated condensed financial statements.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
1. General

In the opinion of the management of Parker Drilling Company (Parker Drilling), the accompanying unaudited consolidated
condensed financial statements reflect all adjustments normally recurring which we believe are necessary for a fair presentation of:
(1) Parker Drilling’s financial position as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, (2) Parker Drilling’s results of operations for the
three and six month periods ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, (3) Parker Drilling’s consolidated condensed statement of comprehensive
income for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and (4) Parker Drilling's cash flows for the six month periods
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. Results for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results that
will be realized for the year ending December 31, 2013. The financial statements should be read in conjunction with our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Nature of Operations — Parker Drilling, together with its subsidiaries (the Company or Parker), is an international drilling
services and rental tools provider. We have operated in over 50 foreign countries and the United States since beginning operations in
1934, making us among the most geographically experienced drilling contractors and rental tools providers in the world. During 2012,
we operated in 12 countries, and in 2013, we acquired an international rental tools business with operations in 10 additional countries.
We have extensive experience and expertise in drilling geologically difficult wells and in managing the logistical and technological
challenges of operating in remote, harsh and ecologically sensitive areas. We believe our quality, health, safety and environmental
practices are leaders in our industry. Our rental tools business specializes in providing high-quality, reliable equipment and services for
oil and natural gas drilling, workover and production applications. This includes drill pipe, heavy-weight drill pipe, tubing, high-torque
connections, blow-out preventers (BOPs), drill collars, casing running systems, fishing services and more.

On April 22, 2013 we acquired International Tubular Services Limited and certain of its affiliates (collectively, ITS) and other
related assets (the ITS Acquisition - see also Note 2). ITS’ principal activities include the rental of drilling equipment and pressure
control systems, provision of casing running systems and fishing services, together with machine shop support. ITS serves an extensive
customer base of exploration and production (E&P) companies, drilling contractors and service companies from 21 operating facilities
primarily located in the Middle East, Latin America, U.K. and Europe, and the Asia-Pacific region.

Our U.S. barge drilling business operates barge rigs that drill for natural gas, oil, and a combination of oil and natural gas in the
shallow waters in and along the inland waterways of Louisiana, Alabama, and Texas. Our international drilling business includes
operations related to Parker-owned and operated rigs as well as customer-owned rigs. We strive to deploy our fleet of Parker-owned rigs
in markets where we expect to have opportunities to keep the rigs consistently in service. In addition, we perform drilling-related
activities for operators who own drilling rigs and who choose to utilize our drilling experience and technical expertise to perform
services on a contracted basis, including Operations and Maintenance (O&M) work, and other project management services (e.g., labor,
maintenance, and logistics). On June 30, 2013, our marketable rig fleet consisted of 13 barge drilling rigs and 23 land rigs located in the
United States, Latin America and the Eastern Hemisphere regions. We have 8 rigs held for sale or currently not marketed as of June 30,
2013. Our Technical Services business includes engineering and related project services during the concept development, pre-FEED
(Front End Engineering Design), and FEED phases of our customer owned drilling facility projects. During the Engineering,
Procurement, Construction and Installation (EPCI) phase, we focus primarily on the drilling systems engineering, procurement,
commissioning and installation, and we typically provide customer support during construction. Our Technical Services business is also
the Company's engineering expertise center and provides our ongoing drilling businesses with services similar to those provided to our
external customers; including engineering design, retrofitting of existing rigs, modification, upgrades and other technology-related
advancements.

Consolidation — The consolidated condensed financial statements include the accounts of Parker Drilling and subsidiaries
over which we exercise control or have a controlling financial interest, including entities, if any, in which the Company is allocated a
majority of the entity’s losses or returns, regardless of ownership percentage. If a subsidiary of Parker Drilling has a 50 percent interest
in an entity but Parker Drilling’s interest in the subsidiary or the entity does not meet the consolidation criteria described above, then that
interest is accounted for under the equity method.

Noncontrolling Interest — We apply the accounting standards related to noncontrolling interests for ownership interests in our
subsidiaries held by parties other than Parker Drilling. The entities that comprise the noncontrolling interest include Parker SMNG
Drilling Limited Liability Company, Primorsky Drill Rig Services B.V., ITS Arabia Limited, and International Tubular Services - Egypt
SAE. We report noncontrolling interest as equity on the consolidated balance sheets
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and report net income (loss) attributable to controlling interest and to noncontrolling interest separately on the consolidated statements
of operations.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to the current period
presentation. These reclassifications did not have a material effect on our consolidated condensed statements of operations, consolidated
condensed balance sheets, condensed statement of comprehensive income or consolidated condensed statements of cash flows.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting policies generally accepted in the
United States (U.S. GAAP) requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect our reported amounts of assets and liabilities, our
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and our revenue and expenses during the periods
reported. Estimates are typically used when accounting for certain significant items, such as allowance for doubtful accounts, legal or
contractual liability accruals, mobilization and deferred mobilization, revenue and cost accounting for projects that follow the percentage
of completion method, self-insured medical/dental plans, income taxes and valuation allowance, and other items requiring the use of
estimates. Estimates are based on a number of variables which may include third party valuations, historical experience and assumptions
that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved with estimates, actual results may
differ from management estimates.

Acquisitions-purchase price allocation — We allocate the purchase price of an acquired business to its identifiable assets and
liabilities based on estimated fair values at the transaction date. Transaction and integration costs associated with an acquisition are
expensed as incurred. The excess of the purchase price over the amount allocated to the assets and liabilities, if any, is recorded as
goodwill. We use all available information to estimate fair values, including quoted market prices, the carrying value of acquired
assets, and widely accepted valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows. We engage third-party appraisal firms to assist in fair
value determination of inventories, identifiable intangible assets, and any other significant assets or liabilities when appropriate. The
judgments made in determining the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as
asset lives, can materially impact our results of operations.

Intangible Assets – Upon the ITS Acquisition, we recorded $10.0 million and $0.2 million, respectively, to recognize the fair
values of definite and indefinite lived intangible assets. (see Note 2 - Acquisition of ITS). Definite lived intangible assets recorded in
connection with the ITS Acquisition primarily relate to trade names, customer relationships, and developed technology and will be
amortized over a weighted average period of approximately 3 years. With regard to indefinite lived intangible assets, which relates to
our development of technology, we will conduct impairment tests annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired.

Revenue Recognition — Contract drilling revenues and expenses, comprised of daywork drilling contracts and engineering and
related project service contracts, are recognized as services are performed and collection is reasonably assured. For certain contracts, we
receive payments contractually designated for the mobilization of rigs and other drilling equipment. Mobilization payments received,
and direct costs incurred for the mobilization, are deferred and recognized over the term of the related drilling contract; however, costs
incurred to relocate rigs and other drilling equipment to areas in which a contract has not been secured are expensed as incurred.
Reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses are recorded as both revenues and direct costs. For contracts that are terminated
prior to the specified term, early termination payments received by us are recognized as revenues when all contractual requirements are
met. Revenues from rental activities are recognized ratably over the rental term which is generally less than six months.

Reimbursable Costs — Within certain contractual arrangements, we may procure and take title, and risk of loss, for certain
equipment or make certain expenditures on behalf of our customers. We typically receive fees for these services, which we record as
revenues. We recognize reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenditures as revenues and account for out-of-pocket expenditures
as direct operating costs. Such amounts totaled $15.4 million and $10.1 million during the second quarters of 2013 and 2012,
respectively and $30.3 million and $17.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Concentrations of Credit Risk — Financial instruments, which potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk, consist
primarily of trade receivables. We generally do not require collateral on our trade receivables.

At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had deposits in domestic banks in excess of federally insured limits of
approximately $32.6 million and $12.2 million, respectively. The change is primarily because as of January 1, 2013, all regular checking
account deposits are only guaranteed up to $250,000 at each institution while prior to January 1, 2013, all regular checking account
deposits were guaranteed, except investments. In addition, as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had uninsured deposits in
foreign banks of $48.6 million and $34.5 million, respectively.

8



Table of Contents

Our customer base consists primarily of major, independent, national and international oil and gas companies and integrated
service providers. We depend on a limited number of customers. Our largest customer, Exxon Neftegas Limited (ENL), constituted 14.3
percent of our total year-to-date revenues as of June 30, 2013. Each of our segments depends on a limited number of key customers and
the loss of any one or more key customers could have a material adverse effect on a segment.

Capitalized Interest — Interest from external borrowings is capitalized on major projects until the assets are ready for their
intended use. Capitalized interest is added to the cost of the underlying assets and is amortized over the useful lives of the assets in the
same manner as the underlying assets. Capitalized interest reduces net interest expense in the consolidated condensed statements of
operations. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, we capitalized interest costs of $0.5 million and $1.0 million,
respectively, which were primarily related to a new enterprise resource planning system. During the second quarter of 2012 we
capitalized $3.0 million of interest costs primarily related to the two Arctic Alaska Drilling Unit (AADU) rigs in Alaska and $5.4 million
for the six month period ended June 30, 2012.

 
2. Acquisition of

ITS    

On April 22, 2013 we entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement (the Agreement) with ITS Tubular Services (Holdings)
Limited, a company organized under the laws of Scotland and in administration proceedings under the laws thereof (the Seller) and
others. Pursuant to the Agreement, we acquired International Tubular Services Limited and certain of its affiliates (collectively, ITS)
and other related assets held by the Seller (the ITS Acquisition) for an initial purchase price of $101.0 million paid at the closing of the
ITS Acquisition. An additional $24.0 million was deposited into an escrow account, which will either be paid to the Seller as additional
purchase price when certain consents are obtained or, in certain circumstances, released to either the Seller or to us, as the case may be,
in accordance with the Agreement. The ITS Acquisition closed simultaneously with the execution of the Agreement on April 22, 2013.

ITS’ principal activities include the rental of drilling equipment and pressure control systems, and the provision of casing running
systems and fishing services, together with machine shop support. ITS serves an extensive customer base of E&P companies, drilling
contractors and service companies from 21 operating facilities primarily located in the Middle East, Latin America, U.K. and Europe,
and the Asia-Pacific region. The entire operations related to ITS and the related assets acquired and liabilities assumed will fall under
our Rental Tools segment.

Fair value of Consideration Transferred
  

The following details the fair value of the consideration transferred to effect the ITS Acquisition (dollars in thousands).

Cash paid to, or on behalf of, ITS and its equity holders $ 101,000
Cash deposited in escrow 19,000
Fair value of contingent consideration deposited in escrow for assets not acquired (1) 5,000
Total fair value of the consideration transferred $ 125,000

(1)    Based on the terms of the Agreement, $5.0 million of the $24.0 million in escrow to be paid to the Seller is contingent upon
certain future liabilities that could become due by ITS in certain jurisdictions. Any payments in relation to these liabilities will be
deducted from the $5.0 million escrow amount and the net balance of the escrow will be paid to the Seller. The estimated fair value of
the consideration in escrow related to these liabilities is $5.0 million. Although not expected, we could be responsible for these
liabilities should they be greater than the $5.0 million in escrow.

Preliminary Allocation of Consideration Transferred to Net Assets Acquired

The following amounts represent the preliminary estimates of fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in
the ITS Acquisition and are based on management’s estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and
assumptions are subject to change upon final valuation and should be treated as preliminary values. Management estimated that the fair
value of the net assets acquired less noncontrolling interest equals consideration paid. Therefore, there was no goodwill recorded.

The final allocation of consideration will include changes in (1) amounts deposited in escrow, (2) estimated fair values of
property and equipment, (3) allocations to intangible assets and liabilities, (4) changes in contingent consideration, and (5) other assets
and liabilities. These amounts will be finalized as soon as possible, but no later than one year from the acquisition date.

9



Table of Contents

 April 22, 2013
 (In thousands)
  

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,009
Accounts and notes receivable, net (1) 48,795
Other current assets 1,803
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (39,156 )
Accrued income taxes (1,251 )

Working capital excluding Rig materials and supplies 17,200
Rig materials and supplies 11,514
Property, plant and equipment, net (2) 70,339
Investment in joint venture 4,134
Other noncurrent assets 2,818
Total tangible assets 106,005
Deferred income tax assets - current 222
Deferred income tax assets - noncurrent (3) 14,153
Intangible Assets (4)  

Trade name, developed technology, and customer relationship 10,000
Indefinite-lived intangible assets 200

Total assets acquired 130,580
Other long-term liabilities (211 )
Long-term deferred tax liability (2,661 )
Net assets acquired 127,708
Less: Noncontrolling interest (5) (2,708 )

Total consideration transferred
$ 125,000

    

(1) Gross contractual amounts receivable totaled $54.7 million as of the acquisition date.

(2) We recorded an adjustment of $43.7 million to reduce the historical carrying value of the acquired property, plant and
equipment to its estimated fair value.

(3) In connection with the ITS Acquisition, we recorded a $7.7 million adjustment to increase deferred income tax assets
primarily related to the differences between acquisition date estimated fair value and tax basis of acquired property, plant and
equipment.

(4) We recorded $10.0 million and $0.2 million to reflect the estimated fair values of definite and indefinite lived intangible
assets, respectively, recognized in connection with the ITS Acquisition. Our depreciation and amortization expense will reflect this
valuation adjustment as the definite lived intangible assets are amortized in future periods. Definite lived intangible assets recorded in
connection with the ITS Acquisition, which primarily relate to trade names, customer relationships, and developed technology will be
amortized over a weighted average period of approximately 3.4 years.

(5) We recorded an adjustment of $1.0 million to write-down the noncontrolling interest to its estimated fair value. The
estimated fair value of the noncontrolling interest was calculated as a percentage of the net assets acquired related to certain
subsidiaries in which ITS holds less than a 100 percent controlling interest. The fair value of the net assets of these subsidiaries was
primarily based on the income approach valuation model.

Acquisition Related Costs

Acquisition-related transaction costs consisted of various advisory, legal, accounting, valuation and other professional or
consulting fees totaling $11.4 million and $14.4 million, respectively for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2013, and
were expensed as incurred and included in general and administrative expense on our condensed consolidated statement of
operations.  Debt issuance costs of $5.4 million associated with our $125 million
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term loan (the Goldman Term Loan) issued on April 18, 2013 were deferred to be amortized to interest expense over the life of the
term loan. However, the Goldman Term Loan was repaid on July 30, 2013 with net proceeds from the issuance of $225.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 7.5% Senior Notes due August 1, 2020, and the deferred costs will be expensed during the third quarter
of 2013 (see Note 14 - Subsequent Events).

Supplemental Pro forma Results

ITS’ results of operations have been included in our financial statements for periods subsequent to April 22, 2013, the effective
date of the ITS Acquisition. ITS contributed revenues of $24.2 million and net income of approximately $0.7 million to Parker Drilling
for the period from the closing of the ITS Acquisition (April 22, 2013) through June 30, 2013.

The following unaudited supplemental pro forma results present consolidated information for the six months ended June 30,
2013 as if the ITS Acquisition had been completed on January 1, 2012.  The pro forma results have been calculated after applying our
accounting policies and include, among others, (i) the amortization associated with the fair value of the acquired intangible assets,
(ii) interest expense associated with the term loan issued to fund the ITS Acquisition and (iii) the impact of certain fair value
adjustments such as a decrease in depreciation expense related to the write-down in property, plant and equipment. The pro forma
results do not include any potential synergies, non-recurring charges which result directly from the ITS Acquisition, cost savings or
other expected benefits of the ITS Acquisition. The pro forma financial information does not necessarily represent what would have
occurred if the transaction had taken place at the beginning of the period presented and should not be taken as representative of our
future consolidated results of operations. We have not concluded our integration work. Accordingly, this pro forma information does
not include all costs related to the integration nor the benefits we expect to realize from operating synergies, such as consolidating
procurement activities.

 Six Months Ended June 30,
 2013  2012
 (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
    

Revenue $ 433,976  $ 418,362
Net income $ 20,558  $ 45,905
Net income attributable to Parker Drilling $ 20,255  $ 45,946
Earnings per share - basic $ 0.17  $ 0.39
Earnings per share - diluted $ 0.17  $ 0.39
    

Basic number of shares 119,177,431  117,129,364
Diluted number of shares 121,498,223  118,623,037
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3. Earnings per share
(EPS)

 

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2013

 
Income

(Numerator)  
Shares

(Denominator)  
Per-Share
Amount

Basic EPS $ 8,281,000  119,483,780  $ 0.07
Effect of dilutive securities:      

Restricted stock —  2,376,231  —
Diluted EPS $ 8,281,000  121,860,011  $ 0.07
      
 Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

 
Income

(Numerator)  
Shares

(Denominator)  
Per-Share
Amount

     
Basic EPS $ 8,873,000  119,177,431  $ 0.07
Effect of dilutive securities:      

Restricted stock —  2,320,792  —
Diluted EPS $ 8,873,000  121,498,223  $ 0.07
      
 Three Months Ended June 30, 2012

 
Income

(Numerator)  
Shares

(Denominator)  
Per-Share
Amount

Basic EPS $ 20,083,000  117,410,212  $ 0.17
Effect of dilutive securities:      

Stock options and restricted stock —  1,116,667  —
Diluted EPS $ 20,083,000  118,526,879  $ 0.17
      
 Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

 
Income

(Numerator)  
Shares

(Denominator)  
Per-Share
Amount

Basic EPS $ 46,475,000  117,129,364  $ 0.40
Effect of dilutive securities:      

Stock options and restricted stock —  1,493,673  (0.01)
Diluted EPS $ 46,475,000  118,623,037  $ 0.39

4. Reportable
Segments

We report our business activities in five business segments: (1) Rental Tools, (2) U.S. Barge Drilling, (3) U.S. Drilling,
(4) International Drilling, and (5)Technical Services. As of December 31, 2012, we had a sixth business segment, Construction Contract,
for which there was no activity during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 or the comparable period in 2012. We eliminate
inter-segment revenues and expenses. As of and for the three months ended June 30, 2013, the results of operations for ITS, acquired on
April 22, 2013, are included in our Rental Tools segment.

The following table represents the results of operations by reportable segment:
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 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

Operations by Reportable Industry Segment 2013  2012  2013  2012
 (Dollars in Thousands)  (Dollars in Thousands)
Revenues:      

Rental Tools $ 82,022  $ 65,002  $ 139,105  $ 131,286
U.S. Barge Drilling 38,301  33,292  68,165  61,127
U.S. Drilling 17,910  —  29,545  —
International Drilling(1) 83,182  76,923  147,832  155,673
Technical Services 4,586  3,708  8,509  7,408

Total revenues 226,001  178,925  393,156  355,494
Operating gross margin:        

Rental Tools(2) 25,149  31,251  46,656  64,853
U.S. Barge Drilling(2) 16,660  11,014  25,417  18,171
U.S. Drilling(2) (666)  (1,623)  (4,719)  (3,170)
International Drilling(2) 8,925  6,056  2,983  20,615
Technical Services(2) 104  (258)  432  (11)

Total operating gross margin 50,172  46,440  70,769  100,458
General and administrative expense (22,378)  (7,420)  (35,261)  (12,917)
Gain on disposition of assets, net 517  1,368  1,665  1,860
Total operating income 28,311  40,388  37,173  89,401
Interest expense (10,741)  (8,925)  (20,747)  (16,962)
Changes in fair value of derivative positions 17  38  54  (11)
Interest income 2,203  53  2,251  79
Loss on extinguishment of debt —  (1,649)  —  (1,649)
Other (183)  20  (56)  36
Income before income taxes $ 19,607  $ 29,925  $ 18,675  $ 70,894
        

Operations by Reportable Industry Segment        
 June 30, 2013  December 31, 2012     
Identifiable assets:        

Rental Tools $ 368,371  $ 194,600     
U.S. Barge Drilling 111,711  99,409     
U.S. Drilling 340,773  374,794     

International Drilling 487,005  414,546     
Total identifiable assets 1,307,860  1,083,349     
Corporate assets (3) 128,677  172,384     
Total assets $ 1,436,537  $ 1,255,733     
 

(1) In the second quarter of 2013, our largest customer, Exxon Neftegas Limited (ENL), constituted 13.9% of our total
consolidated revenues and approximately 37.7% of our International Drilling segment. In the second quarter of 2012, no
single customer contributed 10% or more of our year-to-date consolidated revenues.

(2) Operating gross margin is calculated as revenues less direct operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization
expense.

(3) This category includes corporate assets as well as minimal assets for our Technical Services segment primarily related to
office furniture and fixtures.
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5. Assets Held for
Sale

Assets held for sale of $8.7 million as of June 30, 2013 was comprised of the net book value of two land rigs and related
inventory located in Kazakhstan, one barge rig and related inventory located in Mexico, and a building located in Tulsa, OK.
Management expects to sell the barge rig located in Mexico within one year. The barge rig was in the Latin America rig fleet and has
historically been included in the international drilling segment. We believe the carrying amount of the assets will be recoverable through
sale of the assets.

As of June 30, 2013, for three rigs which had previously been recorded as assets held for sale as of December 31, 2010,
management concluded the current facts and circumstances underlying the sale indicate it is no longer probable that a sale will be
consummated within a reasonable time period. As a result, we reclassified assets previously recorded in the category as assets held for
sale to assets held and used. The assets were reclassified at their carrying amount before the assets were classified as held for sale,
adjusted for depreciation expense that would have been recognized had the assets been continuously classified as held and used. We
believe the updated carrying value approximates the market value for these assets. The amount of additional depreciation recorded
during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 to place the assets in held and used categorization was $0.7 million.

6. Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes

We apply the accounting guidance related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. This guidance prescribes a recognition
threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be more likely than not to be sustained upon examination
by taxing authorities. At June 30, 2013, we had a liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $10.1 million (which includes $3.3 million of
benefits which would favorably impact our effective tax rate upon recognition) primarily related to foreign operations. As of June 30,
2012, we had a liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $14.8 million ($6.9 million of which, if recognized, would favorably impact our
effective tax rate) primarily related to foreign operations. In addition, we recognize interest and penalties that could be applied to
uncertain tax positions in periodic income tax expense. As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had approximately $7.6 million
and $7.0 million, respectively, of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions.

 
7. Income Tax

Benefit/Expense
Income tax expense was $11.2 million for the second quarter of 2013 as compared to $9.8 million for the second quarter of

2012. The increase in current period tax expense is primarily due to a shift in the mix of our foreign and domestic operation's pre-tax
earnings from $29.9 million in the 2012 second quarter and $19.6 million in the 2013 second quarter. In addition, our tax expense was
$1.9 million higher during the second quarter due to non-deductible acquisition-related transaction costs and recorded expenses of $0.6
million related to prior period returns filed during the quarter.

During the quarter-ended June 30, 2013, we received income tax refunds from the IRS of $21.3 million. In addition to the
refund payments, the Company received interest of $2.2 million, which was recorded in the consolidated condensed statement of
operations as interest income.

 
8. Long-Term

Debt
The following table illustrates the Company’s debt portfolio as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

 

 
June 30, 

2013  
December 31, 

2012
 (Dollars in Thousands)
9.125% Senior Notes, due April 2018 $ 429,147  $ 429,205
Goldman Term Loan, due April 2018 125,000  —
Term Note, due December 2017 45,000  50,000
Total debt 599,147  479,205
Less current portion 10,000  10,000
Total long-term debt $ 589,147  $ 469,205
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9.125% Senior Notes, due April 2018
On March 22, 2010, we issued $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 9.125% Senior Notes (9.125% Notes) pursuant to

an Indenture between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. Net proceeds from the 9.125%
Notes offering were primarily used to redeem the $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 9.625% Senior Notes due 2013 and
to repay $42.0 million of borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility (Revolver).

On April 25, 2012, we issued an additional $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 9.125% Notes under the same
indenture at a price of 104.0% of par, resulting in gross proceeds of $130.0 million. Net proceeds from the offering were utilized to
refinance $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2.125% Convertible Senior Notes due July 2012 (2.125% Notes). We
repurchased $122.9 million aggregate principal amount of the 2.125% Notes tendered pursuant to a tender offer on May 9, 2012 and
paid off the remaining $2.1 million at their stated maturity on July 15, 2012.

The 9.125% Notes are general unsecured obligations of the Company and rank equal in right of payment with all of our existing
and future senior unsecured indebtedness. The 9.125% Notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by substantially all of our direct and
indirect domestic subsidiaries other than immaterial subsidiaries and subsidiaries generating revenues primarily outside the United
States. Interest on the 9.125% Notes is payable on April 1 and October 1 of each year. Debt issuance costs related to the 9.125% Notes
of approximately $11.6 million ($8.4 million, net of amortization as of June 30, 2013) are being amortized over the term of the notes
using the effective interest rate method.

At any time prior to April 1, 2013, we could have redeemed up to 35 percent of the aggregate principal amount of the 9.125%
Notes at a redemption price of 109.125 percent of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date, with the
net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings by us. On and after April 1, 2014, we may redeem all or a part of the 9.125% Notes upon
appropriate notice, at a redemption price of 104.563 percent of the principal amount, and at redemption prices decreasing each year
thereafter to par beginning April 1, 2016. If we experience certain changes in control, we must offer to repurchase the 9.125% Notes at
101.0 percent of the aggregate principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional interest, if any, to the date of
repurchase.

The Indenture restricts our ability and the ability of certain subsidiaries to: (i) sell assets, (ii) pay dividends or make other
distributions on capital stock or redeem or repurchase capital stock or subordinated indebtedness, (iii) make investments, (iv) incur or
guarantee additional indebtedness; (v) create or incur liens; (vi) enter into sale and leaseback transactions; (vii) incur dividend or other
payment restrictions affecting subsidiaries, (viii) merge or consolidate with other entities, (ix) enter into transactions with affiliates, and
(x) engage in certain business activities. Additionally, the Indenture contains certain restrictive covenants designating certain events as
Events of Default. These covenants are subject to a number of important exceptions and qualifications.

Goldman Term Loan
In connection with the ITS Acquisition described in Note 2 on April 18, 2013, we entered into a $125 million Term Loan, fully

funded by Goldman Sachs Bank USA as Sole Lead Arranger and Administrative Agent (the Goldman Term Loan). The Goldman
Term Loan bears interest on the outstanding principal amount at a rate per annum equal to (a) for the period from April 18, 2013 to
June 30, 2013 (or May 9, 2013, in the event certain marketing materials have not been provided by May 9, 2013) (the Initial Step-Up
Date), 6.5%, (b) for the period from the Initial Step-Up Date to April 15, 2014, 7.5%, and (c) from April 15, 2014 to maturity, 8.5%.
Quarterly interest payments are due on the last business day of each March, June, September, and December. In addition, a Duration
Fee of 1.00% is payable on June 30, 2013 for the aggregate principal amount of the the Goldman Term Loan outstanding on such date.
The Goldman Term Loan is senior unsecured debt of the Company and has a maturity of April 18, 2018.

Subsequent to the end of the second quarter, we entered into the first amendment to the Goldman Term Loan on July 19, 2013.
The amendment revised the effective date for both the Initial Step-Up Date and the Duration Fee to August 15, 2013. The Goldman
Term Loan of $125 million was repaid on July 30, 2013 with net proceeds from the issuance of $225.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 7.50% Senior Notes due August 1, 2020 (see Note 14 - Subsequent Events).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
On December 14, 2012, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Credit Agreement) consisting of a senior

secured $80.0 million revolving facility (Revolver) and a senior secured term loan facility (Term Loan) of $50.0 million. The Credit
Agreement provides that, subject to certain conditions, including the approval of the Administrative Agent and the lenders’ acceptance
(or additional lenders being joined as new lenders), the amount of the
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Term Loan or Revolver can be increased by an additional $50.0 million, so long as after giving effect to such increase, the aggregate
commitments are not in excess of $180.0 million.

Our obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries, each of which
have executed guaranty agreements; and are secured by first priority liens on our accounts receivable, specified barge rigs and rental
equipment. The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants with which we were in compliance as of
June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012. The Credit Agreement matures on December 14, 2017.

Revolver
Our Revolver is available for general corporate purposes and to support letters of credit. Interest on Revolver loans accrues at a

Base Rate plus an Applicable Rate or LIBOR plus an Applicable Rate. Under the Credit Agreement, the Applicable Rate varies from a
rate per annum ranging from 2.50 percent to 3.00 percent for LIBOR rate loans and 1.50 percent to 2.00 percent for base rate loans,
determined by reference to the consolidated leverage ratio (as defined in the Credit Agreement). Revolving loans are available subject to
a borrowing base calculation based on a percentage of eligible accounts receivable, certain specified barge drilling rigs and rental
equipment of the Company and its subsidiary guarantors. There were no revolving loans outstanding at June 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012. Letters of credit outstanding as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 totaled $2.1 million and $4.5 million, respectively.

Term Loan

The Term Loan originated at $50.0 million on December 14, 2012 and requires quarterly principal payments
of $2.5 million, which began March 31, 2013. Interest on the Term Loan accrues at a Base Rate plus 2.00 percent or LIBOR plus 3.00
percent. The outstanding balance on the Term Loan at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $45.0 million and $50.0 million,
respectively.

On July 19, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our Credit Agreement which, among other things, permits us or any of our
subsidiaries (other than certain immaterial subsidiaries) to incur indebtedness pursuant to additional unsecured senior notes in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $250.0 million at any one time outstanding; provided that any such notes shall (x) have a
scheduled maturity occurring after the maturity date of our senior secured credit facility, (y) contain terms (including covenants and
events of default) no more restrictive, taken as a whole, to us and our subsidiaries than those contained in our senior secured credit
facility and (z) have no scheduled amortization, no sinking fund requirements and no maintenance financial covenants. In addition,
pursuant to the amendment, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Credit Agreement, to the extent we repay the
principal amount of Term Loans outstanding under our senior secured credit facility, until April 30, 2014 we may reborrow, in the form
of additional term loans, up to $45 million of the principal amount of such outstanding term loans we have repaid, provided that such
$45 million reborrowing amount will decrease by $2.5 million at the end of each quarter beginning September 30, 2013 and ending
March 31, 2014, such that the reborrowing availability on April 30, 2014 would be $37.5 million. The Term Loan was repaid on July 30,
2013 with net proceeds from the issuance of $225.0 million aggregate principal of 7.50% Senior Notes due August 1, 2020. (See Note
14 - Subsequent Events).

9. Derivative Financial
Instruments

The Company entered into two variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements as a strategy to manage the floating rate risk on
the Term Loan borrowings under the Credit Agreement. The two agreements fixed the interest rate on a notional amount of $73.0
million of borrowings at 3.878% for the period beginning June 27, 2011 and terminating May 14, 2013. The notional amount of the
swap agreements decreased correspondingly with amortization of the Term Loan under the Existing Credit Agreement. We do not apply
hedge accounting to the agreements and, accordingly, mark-to-market change in the fair value of the interest rate swaps are recognized
in earnings. As of June 30, 2013 the swap agreements had expired and as of December 31, 2012, the fair value of the interest rate swap
was a liability of less than $0.1 million and is recorded in accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. For the quarters ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012, we recognized in earnings a nominal gain and a nominal loss, respectively, relating to these contracts.

 
10. Fair Value of Financial

Instruments
Certain of our assets and liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. For purposes of recording fair

value adjustments for certain financial and non-financial assets and liabilities, and determining fair value disclosures, we estimate fair
value at a price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in the principal market for the asset or liability.
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The fair value measurement and disclosure requirements of FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 820, Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosures (ASC 820) requires inputs that we categorize using a three-level hierarchy, from highest to lowest
level of observable inputs, as follows:

• Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets;

• Level 2 — Direct or indirect observable inputs, including quoted prices or other market data, for
similar

assets or liabilities in active markets or identical assets or liabilities in less active markets;
• Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that require significant judgment for which there is little or no market

data.

When multiple input levels are required for a valuation, we categorize the entire fair value measurement according to the lowest
level of input that is significant to the entire measurement even though we may also have utilized significant inputs that are more readily
observable. The amounts reported in our consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts
payable approximate fair value. The carrying amount of our interest rate swap agreements represents the estimated fair value, measured
using Level 2 inputs. At June 30, 2013 the swap agreements had expired and as of December 31, 2012, the carrying amount of our
interest rate swap agreements was a liability of less than $0.1 million, recorded in accrued liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets.

Fair value of our debt instruments is determined using Level 2 inputs. Fair values and related carrying values of our debt
instruments were as follows for the periods indicated:

 

  June 30, 2013  December 31, 2012

 
Carrying
Amount  Fair Value  

Carrying
 Amount  Fair Value

 (in thousands)
Long-term Debt        

9.125% Notes $ 425,000  $ 449,438  $ 425,000  $ 453,688
Total $ 425,000  $ 449,438  $ 425,000  $ 453,688

The following table summarizes information regarding our financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of June 30, 2013, segregated by level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value (in
thousands):

Liabilities: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Deposits in escrow $ — $ — $ 5,000 $ 5,000
Total Liabilities $ — $ — $ 5,000 $ 5,000

The table above includes contingent consideration deposited in escrow for assets not acquired in the ITS Acquisition. The fair
value is contingent upon certain future liabilities that could become due by ITS in certain jurisdictions. Any payments in relation to
these liabilities will be deducted from the $5.0 million escrow amount and the net balance of the escrow will be paid to the Seller. The
fair value measurement of the contingent consideration is based on inputs that are not observable in the market and therefore represent
level 3 inputs.

The table above excludes assets and liabilities measured on a one-time non-recurring basis that were acquired as part of the ITS
Acquisition. See Note 2 - Acquisition of ITS, for more information. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the ITS Acquisition
were recorded at fair value in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Acquisition date fair values represent either Level 2 fair value measurements
(current assets and liabilities, property, plant and equipment) or Level 3 fair value measurements (intangible assets).

Market conditions could cause an instrument to be reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2, or Level 2 to Level 3. There were no
transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy or any changes in the valuation techniques used during the six months ended June 30,
2013.

 
11. Contingencies

Asbestos-Related Claims
We are from time to time a party to various lawsuits in the ordinary course that are incidental to our operations in which the

claimants seek an unspecified amount of monetary damages for personal injury, including injuries purportedly
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resulting from exposure to asbestos on drilling rigs and associated facilities. At June 30, 2013, there were approximately 15 of these
lawsuits in which we are one of many defendants. These lawsuits have been filed in the United States in the State of Mississippi.

We intend to defend ourselves vigorously and, based on the information available to us at this time, we do not expect the
outcome to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, we are unable to
predict the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits. No amounts were accrued at June 30, 2013.

Gulfco Site
In 2003, we received an information request under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability

Act (CERCLA) designating Parker Drilling Offshore Corporation, a subsidiary of Parker Drilling, as a potentially responsible party with
respect to the Gulfco Marine Maintenance, Inc. Superfund Site in Freeport, Texas (EPA No. TX 055144539). We responded to this
request and in January 2008 received an administrative order to participate in an investigation of the site and a study of the remediation
needs and alternatives. The EPA alleges that our subsidiary is a successor to a party who owned the Gulfco site during the time when
chemical releases took place there. In December 2010, we entered into an agreement with two other potentially responsible parties,
pursuant to which we agreed to pay 20 percent of past and future costs to study and remediate the site. The EPA also issued notice letters
to several other parties who may also participate in funding the site remediation costs. On March 20, 2013 we received a Notice of
Completion from the EPA confirming that all required activity for removal and remediation has been completed, except for ongoing
monitoring costs. As of June 30, 2013, the Company had made certain participating payments and had accrued $0.7 million for our
portion of certain unreimbursed past costs and the estimated future cost of monitoring.

Customs Agent and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) Settlement
On April 16, 2013, we announced that we had reached a settlement in connection with previously reported investigations by the

United States Department of Justice (DOJ) and the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) regarding possible
violations of U.S. law, including the FCPA, by us. Our cooperation and the thoroughness of our investigation were noted by both
agencies.

Under the terms of the resolution with the DOJ, the Company entered into a deferred prosecution agreement (DPA), under
which the DOJ will defer for three years prosecuting the Company for criminal violations of the anti-bribery provisions of the FCPA
relating to the Company's retention and use of an individual agent in Nigeria with respect to certain customs-related issues, in return for:
(i) the Company's acceptance of responsibility for, and agreement not to contest or contradict the truthfulness of, the statement of facts
and allegations that have been filed in a United States District Court concurrently with the DPA; (ii) the Company's payment of an
approximately $11.76 million fine; (iii) the Company's reaffirming its commitment to compliance with the FCPA and other applicable
anti-corruption laws in connection with the Company's operations, and continuing cooperation with domestic and foreign authorities in
connection with the matters that are the subject of the DPA; (iv) the Company's commitment to continue to address any identified areas
for improvement in the Company's internal controls, policies and procedures relating to compliance with the FCPA and other applicable
anti-corruption laws if, and to the extent, not already addressed; and (v) the Company's agreement to report to the DOJ in writing
annually during the term of the DPA regarding remediation of the matters that are the subject of the DPA, implementation of any
enhanced internal controls, and any evidence of improper payments the Company may have discovered during the term of the
agreement. If the Company remains in compliance with the terms of the DPA throughout its effective period, the charge against the
Company will be dismissed with prejudice.

Under the terms of the resolution with the SEC, the Commission approved a settlement with the Company, pursuant to which
the SEC filed a civil complaint in a United States District Court charging the Company with violations of the anti-bribery, books and
records and internal control provisions of the FCPA, and the Company consented to the entry of a final judgment of permanent
injunction barring future violations of the anti-bribery, books and records and internal controls provisions of the FCPA. The Company
also agreed to the payment of disgorgement of approximately $3.05 million and prejudgment interest of approximately $1.04 million, for
a total of approximately $4.09 million. The agreement with the SEC does not require the payment of a civil monetary fine, and neither
the proposed agreement with the DOJ nor the proposed agreement with the SEC requires the appointment of a monitor to oversee the
Company's activities or compliance with applicable laws. The final judgment has been approved by the court.

As previously disclosed, we have taken and continue to take certain steps to enhance our existing anti-bribery compliance
efforts, including retaining a full-time Chief Compliance Officer who reports to the Chief Executive Officer and Audit Committee and
full-time staff to assist him; adopting revised FCPA policies, procedures, and controls; increasing training and testing requirements;
strengthening contractual provisions for our service providers that interface with foreign
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government officials; improving due diligence and continuing oversight procedures for the review and selection of such service
providers; and implementing a compliance awareness improvement initiative that includes issuance of periodic anti-bribery compliance
alerts. We will continue to emphasize the importance of compliance and ethical business conduct.

The Company was required to pay $15.85 million to settle these matters, which is the amount previously announced and
recorded as a charge for the fourth quarter of 2012.

Demand Letter and Derivative Litigation

In April 2010, we received a demand letter from a law firm representing Ernest Maresca. The letter states that Mr. Maresca is
one of our stockholders and that he believes that certain of our current and former officers and directors violated their fiduciary duties
related to the issues described above under “Customs Agent and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) Settlement.” The letter requests
that our Board of Directors take action against the individuals in question. In response to this letter, the Board formed a special
committee to investigate the issues raised in the letter and recommend a course of action for the Company.  The special committee
engaged its own counsel for the investigation and evaluated potential claims against all individuals identified in the demand letter.  The
special committee considered whether pursuing each of the individuals named in the demand letter was in the best interests of the
Company based upon a variety of factors, including among others, whether the Company had a potential cause of action against the
individual, the defenses the individual might offer to such a claim, the ability of the individual to satisfy any judgment the Company
might secure as a result of a claim asserted, and other risks to the Company of pursuing the claims.  After taking various factors into
account, on July 29, 2013, the special committee recommended to the Board that the Company not pursue any action against the current
and former officers and directors named in the demand letter, and the Board accepted such recommendation.

 ITS Internal Controls

Our due diligence process with respect to the ITS Acquisition identified certain transactions that suggest that ITS' internal
controls may have failed to prevent violations of potentially applicable international trade and anti-corruption laws, including those of
the United Kingdom. As part of the integration process with respect to ITS, we will continue our review of ITS' activities to further
identify potential violations of applicable international trade and anti-corruption laws and will promptly apply our developed systems of
internal controls, Code of Conduct, policies and procedures to the acquired businesses to help ensure prevention of potential future
violations. As appropriate, we will make any identified violations known to relevant authorities, cooperate with any resulting
investigations and take proper remediation measures (including seeking any necessary government authorizations). While it is possible
that matters may arise where a contingency may require further accounting considerations, we do not believe that as a result of these
matters a loss is probable nor is a loss estimable at this time.

12. Recent Accounting
Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2012, we adopted the accounting standards update that changes the wording used to describe many of the
requirements in U.S. GAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements. Some of the
amendments included in this update are intended to clarify the applications of existing fair value measurement requirements. The update
was effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Our adoption did not have a material effect on the disclosures
contained in our notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued an update to existing guidance on the impairment assessment of indefinite-lived intangibles. This
update simplifies the impairment assessment of indefinite-lived intangibles by allowing companies to consider qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than its carrying amount
before performing the two step impairment review process. The adoption of this update did not have an impact on our condensed
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out
of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, which requires that companies present, either in a single note or parenthetically on the
face of the financial statements, the effect of significant amounts reclassified from each component of accumulated other
comprehensive income based on its source and the income statement line items affected by the reclassification. This accounting
guidance is effective for our first quarter in fiscal 2014 and is only expected to impact the presentation of our consolidated financial
statements and related notes.
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13. Parent, Guarantor, Non-Guarantor Unaudited Consolidating Condensed Financial
Statements

Set forth on the following pages are the consolidating condensed financial statements of Parker Drilling. The Company’s
9.125% Notes are guaranteed by substantially all of its direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries other than immaterial subsidiaries
generating revenues primarily outside the United States. There are currently no restrictions on the ability of the guarantor to transfer
funds to Parker Drilling in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances. Parker Drilling is a holding company with no operations, other
than through its subsidiaries. Separate financial statements for each guarantor company are not provided as the Company complies with
the exception to Rule 3-10(a)(1) of Regulation S-X, set forth in sub-paragraph (f) of such rule. All guarantor subsidiaries are owned 100
percent by Parker Drilling, all guarantees are full and unconditional and all guarantees are joint and several.

We are providing consolidating condensed financial information of Parker Drilling, the guarantor subsidiaries, and the non-
guarantor subsidiaries as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. The
consolidating condensed financial statements present investments in both consolidated and unconsolidated subsidiaries using the equity
method of accounting.

20



Table of Contents

PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 

 June 30, 2013

 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated
ASSETS          

Current assets:          
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,706  $ 5,043  $ 49,859  $ —  $ 69,608
Accounts and notes receivable, net 415,294  127,661  368,236  (659,751)  251,440
Rig materials and supplies —  2,514  36,715  —  39,229
Deferred costs —  65  10,757  —  10,822
Deferred income taxes —  11,950  4,461  —  16,411
Other tax assets 1,152  (783)  13,353  —  13,722
Assets held for sale —  1,771  6,885  —  8,656
Other current assets —  11,343  8,475  —  19,818

Total current assets 431,152  159,564  498,741  (659,751)  429,706
Property, plant and equipment, net 60  557,331  295,422  —  852,813
Investment in subsidiaries and intercompany advances 818,597  (241,693)  1,705,099  (2,282,003)  —
Other noncurrent assets 53,989  54,771  45,258  —  154,018

Total assets $ 1,303,798  $ 529,973  $ 2,544,520  $ (2,941,754)  $ 1,436,537
          

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY          
Current liabilities:          

Current portion of long-term debt $ 10,000  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 10,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 68,206  90,012  373,142  (362,230)  169,130
Accrued income taxes (35,299)  41,885  389  —  6,975

Total current liabilities 42,907  131,897  373,531  (362,230)  186,105
Long-term debt 589,147  —  —  —  589,147
Other long-term liabilities 3,933  5,075  13,735  —  22,743
Long-term deferred tax liability  40,892  (9,586)  —  31,306
Intercompany payables 62,584  43,657  356,331  (462,572)  —
Contingencies —  —  —  —  —
Stockholders’ equity:          

Common stock 19,995  18,049  43,003  (61,052)  19,995
Capital in excess of par value 651,535  733,899  1,579,458  (2,313,357)  651,535
Accumulated other comprehensive income —  —  (564)  —  (564)
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (66,303)  (443,496)  186,602  257,457  (65,740)

Total controlling interest stockholders’
equity 605,227  308,452  1,808,499  (2,116,952)  605,226

Noncontrolling interest —  —  2,010  —  2,010
Total equity 605,227  308,452  1,810,509  (2,116,952)  607,236

Total liabilities and stockholders’
equity

$ 1,303,798  $ 529,973  $ 2,544,520  $ (2,941,754)  $ 1,436,537
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 

 December 31, 2012

 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated
ASSETS          

Current assets:          
Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,251  $ 11,023  $ 34,612  $ —  $ 87,886
Accounts and notes receivable, net 289,957  98,747  292,644  (512,786)  168,562
Rig materials and supplies —  2,834  26,026  —  28,860
Deferred costs —  —  1,089  —  1,089
Deferred income taxes —  7,615  1,127  —  8,742
Other tax assets 46,249  (31,136)  18,411  —  33,524
Assets held for sale —  —  6,800  —  6,800
Other current assets —  8,675  4,146  —  12,821

Total current assets 378,457  97,758  384,855  (512,786)  348,284
Property, plant and equipment, net 60  548,794  240,269  —  789,123
Investment in subsidiaries and intercompany advances 780,878  (233,388)  1,467,429  (2,014,919)  —
Other noncurrent assets 43,569  59,541  15,216  —  118,326

Total assets $ 1,202,964  $ 472,705  $ 2,107,769  $ (2,527,705)  $ 1,255,733
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY          

Current liabilities:          
Current portion of long-term debt $ 10,000  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 10,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 65,839  93,243  205,864  (227,200)  137,746
Accrued income taxes —  612  3,508  —  4,120

Total current liabilities 75,839  93,855  209,372  (227,200)  151,866
Long-term debt 469,205  —  —  —  469,205
Other long-term liabilities 3,933  6,129  13,120  —  23,182
Long-term deferred tax liability —  36,894  (16,047)  —  20,847
Intercompany payables 62,583  43,657  216,320  (322,560)  —
Contingencies —  —  —  —  —
Stockholders’ equity:          

Common stock 19,818  18,049  43,003  (61,052)  19,818
Capital in excess of par value 646,217  733,112  1,455,246  (2,188,358)  646,217
Accumulated other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  —
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (74,631)  (458,991)  187,526  271,465  (74,631)

Total controlling interest stockholders’
equity 591,404  292,170  1,685,775  (1,977,945)  591,404

Noncontrolling interest —  —  (771)  —  (771)
Total Equity 591,404  292,170  1,685,004  (1,977,945)  590,633

Total liabilities and stockholders’
equity $ 1,202,964  $ 472,705  $ 2,107,769  $ (2,527,705)  $ 1,255,733
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Three months ended June 30, 2013

 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated
          
Total revenues $ —  $ 121,848  $ 133,057  $ (28,904)  $ 226,001
Operating expenses —  63,833  108,620  (28,904)  143,549
Depreciation and amortization —  18,721  13,559  —  32,280
Total operating gross margin —  39,294  10,878  —  50,172
General and administration expense (1) (46)  (22,160)  (172)  —  (22,378)
Gain on disposition of assets, net —  843  (326)  —  517
Total operating income (loss) (46)  17,977  10,380  —  28,311
Other income and (expense):          

Interest expense (11,719)  (35)  (2,765)  3,778  (10,741)
Changes in fair value of derivative positions 17  —  —  —  17
Interest income 1,437  1,144  3,400  (3,778)  2,203
Other —  (269)  86  —  (183)
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries 13,828  —  —  (13,828)  —
Total other income (expense) 3,563  840  721  (13,828)  (8,704)

Income (benefit) before income taxes 3,517  18,817  11,101  (13,828)  19,607
Total income tax expense (benefit) (4,764)  12,182  3,815  —  11,233

Net income (loss) 8,281  6,635  7,286  (13,828)  8,374
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interest —  —  93  —  93
Net income (loss) attributable to controlling interest $ 8,281  $ 6,635  $ 7,193  $ (13,828)  $ 8,281

(1) General and administration expenses for field operations are included in operating expenses.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2012
 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated
          
Total revenues $ —  $ 104,767  $ 98,036  $ (23,878)  $ 178,925
Operating expenses —  47,632  80,772  (23,878)  104,526
Depreciation and amortization —  15,665  12,294  —  27,959
Total operating gross margin —  41,470  4,970  —  46,440
General and administration expense (1) (44)  (7,078)  (298)  —  (7,420)
Gain on disposition of assets, net —  197  1,171  —  1,368
Total operating income (loss) (44)  34,589  5,843  —  40,388
Other income and (expense):          

Interest expense (9,817)  (35)  (2,023)  2,950  (8,925)
Changes in fair value of derivative positions 38  —  —  —  38
Interest income 8,504  4,537  34,070  (47,058)  53
Loss on extinguishment of debt (1,649)  —  —  —  (1,649)
Other —  23  (3)  —  20

Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries 19,057  —  —  (19,057)  —
Total other income (expense) 16,133  4,525  32,044  (63,165)  (10,463)
Income (loss) before income taxes 16,089  39,114  37,887  (63,165)  29,925
Income tax expense (benefit) (3,994)  13,668  143  —  9,817
Net income (loss) 20,083  25,446  37,744  (63,165)  20,108
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interest —  —  25  —  25
Net income (loss) attributable to controlling interest $ 20,083  $ 25,446  $ 37,719  $ (63,165)  $ 20,083

(1) General and administration expenses for field operations are included in operating expenses.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2013
 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated
          
Total revenues $ —  $ 226,210  $ 219,357  $ (52,411)  $ 393,156
Operating expenses —  122,411  190,595  (52,411)  260,595
Depreciation and amortization —  37,380  24,412  —  61,792
Total operating gross margin —  66,419  4,350  —  70,769
General and administration expense (1) (91)  (34,914)  (256)  —  (35,261)
Gain on disposition of assets, net —  1,952  (287)  —  1,665
Total operating income (loss) (91)  33,457  3,807  —  37,173
Other income and (expense):          

Interest expense (22,699)  (59)  (6,182)  8,193  (20,747)
Changes in fair value of derivative positions 54  —  —  —  54
Interest income 3,006  1,334  6,104  (8,193)  2,251
Other —  (167)  111  —  (56)
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries 14,007  —  —  (14,007)  —

Total other income (expense) (5,632)  1,108  33  (14,007)  (18,498)
Income (loss) before income taxes (5,723)  34,565  3,840  (14,007)  18,675
Total Income tax expense (benefit) (14,596)  17,771  6,554  —  9,729
Net income (loss) 8,873  16,794  (2,714)  (14,007)  8,946
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interest —  —  73  —  73
Net income (loss) attributable to controlling interest $ 8,873  $ 16,794  $ (2,787)  $ (14,007)  $ 8,873

(1) General and administration expenses for field operations are included in operating expenses.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated
          
Total revenues $ —  $ 203,924  $ 201,061  $ (49,491)  $ 355,494
Operating expenses —  90,999  157,950  (49,491)  199,458
Depreciation and amortization —  31,261  24,317  —  55,578
Total operating gross margin —  81,664  18,794  —  100,458
General and administration expense (1) (90)  (12,450)  (377)  —  (12,917)
Gain on disposition of assets, net —  615  1,245  —  1,860
Total operating income (loss) (90)  69,829  19,662  —  89,401
Other income and (expense):          

Interest expense (18,818)  (71)  (3,972)  5,899  (16,962)
Changes in fair value of derivative positions (11)  —  —  —  (11)
Interest income 8,600  4,715  36,771  (50,007)  79
Loss on extinguishment of debt (1,649)  —  —  —  (1,649)
Other —  36  —  —  36
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries 50,957  —  —  (50,957)  —

Total other income (expense) 39,079  4,680  32,799  (95,065)  (18,507)
Income (loss) before income taxes 38,989  74,509  52,461  (95,065)  70,894
Income tax expense (benefit) (7,486)  27,698  4,248  —  24,460
Net income (loss) 46,475  46,811  48,213  (95,065)  46,434
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interest —  —  (41)  —  (41)
Net income (loss) attributable to controlling interest $ 46,475  $ 46,811  $ 48,254  $ (95,065)  $ 46,475

(1) General and administration expenses for field operations are included in operating expenses.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Three Months Ended June 30, 2013
 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated
Comprehensive income (loss):     
Net income $ 8,281  $ 6,635  $ 7,193  $ (13,828)  $ 8,281
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:     

Foreign exchange translation losses and other —  —  (564)  —  (564)
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax: —  —  (564)  —  (564)
Comprehensive income 8,281  6,635  6,629  (13,828)  7,717
Comprehensive (income)/loss attributable to noncontrolling
interest —  —  (30)  —  (30)
Comprehensive income attributable to controlling interest $ 8,281  $ 6,635  $ 6,599  $ (13,828)  $ 7,687
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2013
 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated
Comprehensive income (loss):     
Net income $ 8,873  $ 16,794  $ (2,787)  $ (14,007)  $ 8,873
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:     

Foreign exchange translation losses and other —  —  (564)  —  (564)
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax: —  —  (564)  —  (564)
Comprehensive income 8,873  16,794  (3,351)  (14,007)  8,309
Comprehensive (income)/loss attributable to noncontrolling
interest —  —  (30)  —  (30)
Comprehensive income attributable to controlling interest $ 8,873  $ 16,794  $ (3,381)  $ (14,007)  $ 8,279
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities:          
Net income (loss) $ 8,873  $ 16,794  $ (2,714)  $ (14,007)  $ 8,946
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss):     
Depreciation and amortization —  37,380  24,412  —  61,792
Gain on disposition of assets —  (1,952)  287  —  (1,665)
Deferred income tax expense (4,560)  6,261  99  —  1,800
Expenses not requiring cash 5,218  1,563  1,208  —  7,989
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries (14,007)  —  —  14,007  —
Change in accounts receivable (125,337)  (22,895)  115,947  —  (32,285)
Change in accrued income taxes (35,297)  41,272  (3,796)  —  2,179
Change in other assets 45,072  (42,264)  3,903  —  6,711
Change in liabilities 1,780  (14,043)  2,720  —  (9,543)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (118,258)  22,116  142,066  —  45,924
     
Cash flows from investing activities:     

Capital expenditures —  (38,430)  (25,107)  —  (63,537)
Proceeds from the sale of assets —  2,834  67  —  2,901
Acquisition of ITS, net of cash acquired —  (292)  (117,699)  —  (117,991)

Net cash (used in) investing activities —  (35,888)  (142,739)  —  (178,627)
     
Cash flows from financing activities:     

Proceeds from debt issuance 125,000  —  —  —  125,000
Paydown on term note (5,000)  —  —  —  (5,000)
Payment of debt issuance costs (5,386)  —  —  —  (5,386)
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation (189)  —  —  —  (189)
Intercompany advances, net (23,712)  7,792  15,920  —  —

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 90,713  7,792  15,920  —  114,425
     
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (27,545)  (5,980)  15,247  —  (18,278)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 42,251  11,023  34,612  —  87,886
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 14,706  $ 5,043  $ 49,859  $ —  $ 69,608
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in Thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

 Parent  Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations  Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities:          
Net income (loss) $ 46,475  $ 46,811  $ 48,213  $ (95,065)  $ 46,434
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)     
to net cash provided by operating activities:     
Depreciation and amortization —  31,261  24,317  —  55,578
Loss on extinguishment of debt 1,649  —  —  —  1,649
Gain on disposition of assets —  (615)  (1,245)  —  (1,860)
Deferred income tax expense 7,025  3,832  (425)  —  10,432
Expenses not requiring cash 10,737  716  336  —  11,789
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries (50,957)  —  —  50,957  —
Change in accounts receivable (208)  (11,248)  20,617  —  9,161
Change in other assets (29,586)  22,490  (42 )  —  (7,138)
Change in accrued income taxes (766)  1,042  647  —  923
Change in liabilities 2,402  (25,239)  (8,600)  —  (31,437)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (13,229)  69,050  83,818  (44,108)  95,531
          

Cash flows from investing activities:          
Capital expenditures —  (103,855)  (5,676)  —  (109,531)
Proceeds from the sale of assets —  906  1,434  —  2,340
Intercompany dividend payment (8,387)  (4,357)  (31,364)  44,108  —

Net cash (used in) investing activities (8,387)  (107,306)  (35,606)  44,108  (107,191)
          

Cash flows from financing activities:          
Proceeds from debt issuance 130,000  —  —  —  130,000

Paydown on senior notes
(122,852)  —  —  —  (122,852)

Paydown on term note (12,000)  —  —  —  (12,000)
Payment of debt issuance costs (3,537)  —  —  —  (3,537)
Payment of debt extinguishment costs (402)  —  —  —  (402)
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation 49  —  —  —  49
Intercompany advances, net 2,919  44,310  (47,229)  —  —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (5,823)  44,310  (47,229)  —  (8,742)

          

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (27,439)  6,054  983  —  (20,402)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 55,670  4,212  37,987  —  97,869
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 28,231  $ 10,266  $ 38,970  $ —  $ 77,467
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14. Subsequent
Events

7.50% Senior Notes, due August 2020
On July 30, 2013, we issued $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.50% Senior Notes (7.50% Notes) pursuant to an

Indenture between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. Net proceeds from the 7.50%
Notes offering were primarily used to repay the $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Goldman Term Loan, to repay $45.0
million of Term Loan borrowings under our Credit Agreement and for general corporate purposes.

The 7.50% Notes are general unsecured obligations of the Company and rank equal in right of payment with all of our existing
and future senior unsecured indebtedness. The 7.50% Notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by all of our subsidiaries that
guarantee indebtedness under our senior secured credit facility. Interest on the 7.50% Notes is payable on February 1 and August 1 of
each year, beginning February 1, 2014. Debt issuance costs related to the 7.50% Notes are estimated to be $6.5 million and will be
amortized over the term of the notes using the effective interest rate method.

At any time prior to August 1, 2016, we may redeem up to 35 percent of the aggregate principal amount of the 7.50% Notes at a
redemption price of 107.50 percent of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date, with the net cash
proceeds of certain equity offerings by us. On and after August 1, 2016, we may redeem all or a part of the 7.50% Notes upon
appropriate notice, at a redemption price of 103.750 percent of the principal amount, and at redemption prices decreasing each year
thereafter to par beginning August 1, 2018. If we experience certain changes in control, we must offer to repurchase the 7.50% Notes at
101.0 percent of the aggregate principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional interest, if any, to the date of
repurchase.

The Indenture restricts our ability and the ability of certain subsidiaries to: (i) sell assets, (ii) pay dividends or make other
distributions on capital stock or redeem or repurchase capital stock or subordinated indebtedness, (iii) make investments, (iv) incur or
guarantee additional indebtedness; (v) create or incur liens; (vi) enter into sale and leaseback transactions; (vii) incur dividend or other
payment restrictions affecting subsidiaries, (viii) merge or consolidate with other entities, (ix) enter into transactions with affiliates, and
(x) engage in certain business activities. Additionally, the Indenture contains certain restrictive covenants designating certain events as
Events of Default. These covenants are subject to a number of important exceptions and qualifications.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

DISCLOSURE NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Form 10-Q contains statements that are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act

of 1933, as amended (Securities Act), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act). All statements
contained in this Form 10-Q, other than statements of historical facts, are forward-looking statements for purposes of these provisions,
including any statements regarding:

• stability of prices and demand for oil and natural
gas;

• levels of oil and natural gas exploration and production
activities;

• demand for contract drilling and drilling-related services and demand for rental
tools;

• our future operating results and
profitability;

• our future rig utilization, dayrates and rental tools
activity;

• entering into new, or extending existing, drilling contracts and our expectations concerning when our rigs will commence
operations under such contracts;

• growth through acquisitions of companies or assets, including the ITS
Acquisition;

• organic growth of our
operations;

• construction or upgrades of rigs and expectations regarding when these rigs will commence
operations;

• capital expenditures for acquisition of rigs, construction of new rigs or major upgrades to existing
rigs;

• entering into joint venture
agreements;

• our future
liquidity;

• availability and sources of funds to refinance our debt and expectations of when debt will be
reduced;

• the outcome of pending or future legal proceedings, investigations, tax assessments and other
claims;

• the availability of insurance coverage for pending or future
claims;

• the enforceability of contractual indemnification in relation to pending or future claims;
and

• compliance with covenants under our debt
agreements.

In some cases, you can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “could,” “estimate,”
“expect,” “intend,” “outlook,” “may,” “should,” “will” and “would” or similar words. Forward-looking statements are based on certain
assumptions and analyses made by our management in light of their experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions,
expected future developments and other factors they believe are relevant. Although our management believes that their assumptions are
reasonable based on information currently available, those assumptions are subject to significant risks and uncertainties, many of which are
outside of our control. The following factors, as well as those factors set forth in Item 1A, “Risk Factors”, in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 and our other public filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and any other
cautionary language included in this Form 10-Q, provide examples of risks, uncertainties and events that may cause our actual results to
differ materially from the expectations we describe in our forward-looking statements:

• worldwide economic and business conditions that adversely affect market conditions and/or the cost of doing business including
potential country failures and downgrades;

• our inability to access the credit or bond
markets;

• U.S. credit market volatility resulting from the U.S. national debt and potential further downgrades of the U.S. credit
rating;

• the U.S. economy and the demand for natural
gas;

• low U.S. natural gas prices that could adversely affect U.S. drilling and our barge rig and rental tools
businesses;

• worldwide demand for
oil;



• fluctuations in the market prices of oil and natural gas, including the inability or unwillingness of our customers to fund drilling
programs in low price cycles;

• imposition of unanticipated trade
restrictions;

• unanticipated operating hazards and uninsured
risks;

• political instability, terrorism or
war;

32



Table of Contents

• governmental regulations, including changes in accounting rules or tax laws that may impact our ability to remit funds to the U.S.,
that adversely affect the cost of doing business;

• changes in the tax laws that would allow double taxation on foreign sourced
income;

• the outcome of investigations into possible violations of
law;

• adverse environmental
events;

• adverse weather
conditions;

• global health
concerns;

• changes in the concentration of customer and supplier
relationships;

• ability of our customers and suppliers to obtain financing for their
operations;

• ability of our customers to fund drilling plans with low commodity
prices;

• unexpected cost increases for new construction and upgrade and refurbishment
projects;

• delays in obtaining components for capital projects and in ongoing operational maintenance and equipment
certifications;

• shortages of skilled
labor;

• unanticipated cancellation of contracts by customers or
operators;

• breakdown of
equipment;

• other operational problems including delays in start-up or commissioning of
rigs;

• changes in
competition;

• the effect of litigation and contingencies;
and

• other similar factors, some of which are discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, elsewhere in this Form 10-Q and in our
other reports and filings with the SEC.

Each forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date of this Form 10-Q, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, unless required by applicable
law. You should be aware that the occurrence of the events described in these risk factors and elsewhere in this Form 10-Q could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
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OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Overview

Parker Drilling's financial results for the 2013 second quarter include the impacts of the April 22, 2013 ITS Acquisition. The
acquisition adds international presence to our rental tools business and provides opportunities for profitable growth. In executing the
acquisition, we incurred due diligence and integration expenses, some of which impacted our 2013 second quarter results.

Our financial results for the 2013 second quarter, compared with the 2012 second quarter, reflect the impact of market opportunities
and challenges and management actions to improve operating performance and profitability. Continued softness in the U.S. land drilling
market led to a decline in demand and further price discounting for our U.S. rental tools business. Rental Tools expanded its participation in
the growing Gulf of Mexico drilling market, aided by recent purchases of products unique to this market. The U.S. Gulf of Mexico inland
barge market remained robust. Our U.S. barge drilling business matched last year's full utilization and achieved an increase in average
dayrates. The 2013 second quarter average utilization of our international rig fleet rose to levels similar to what we had achieved in the
2012 second quarter, though average revenue per day weakened. Furthermore, we expanded the scope of our international O&M contracts
which led to increased revenues and earnings. Our U.S. Drilling business reported the first full quarter of operations for our two AADU
rigs in Alaska and our O&M contract in California.

Outlook

Our markets are highly cyclical, driven by, among other things, our customers' response to trends in oil and natural gas prices, the
level of energy exploration and resource development spending (E&P spending) in the U.S. and international markets in which we operate,
and technological advancements in energy exploration and production. While industry surveys continue to project worldwide E&P spending
to rise, with the greatest increases in offshore exploration and development and in the Middle East land drilling market, there is some
uncertainty within the industry as to the direction and pace of U.S. land drilling activity for the rest of this year.

Based on current activity and recent market trends, we expect our rental tools business to benefit from rising demand in international
markets and growing activity in the Gulf of Mexico drilling market, while soft demand in the U.S. land market will impact competitive
conditions affecting our U.S. rental tools business. We expect the current pace of activity in the U.S. GOM barge drilling market to
moderate temporarily, influenced by operators' typical caution during the GOM storm season.

Our two AADU rigs located on the North Slope of Alaska and one O&M contract for offshore platform operations located in
California are projected to generate reliable cash flow during the terms of their multi-year contracts.

Growth in worldwide E&P spending should provide conditions favorable to our efforts to put more of our rigs to work in growing
regions with opportunities to gain operating scale. We are currently mobilizing some rigs for work that will begin in the second half of this
year. Based on recent tender activity, further rig deployment opportunities could arise later this year. Our objective is to produce improved
operating results from higher utilization and increased operating scale in select regions although the repositioning of rigs may lead to
uneven operating results in the near-term.

Our Technical Services segment continues to be engaged in engineering and development projects that apply our drilling knowledge,
expertise and experience to customers' needs for innovative solutions to their drilling challenges. We expect some of those projects to
progress into more expansive engagements, though the timing remains uncertain.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Three Months Ended June 30, 2013 Compared with Three Months Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues of $226.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2013 increased $47.1 million over the comparable 2012 period.
Operating gross margin increased to $50.2 million, or 8.0% for the three months ended June 30, 2013 as compared with $46.4 million for
the three months ended June 30, 2012. We recorded net income attributable to controlling interest of $8.3 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2013, as compared with $20.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012.

The following is an analysis of our operating results for the comparable quarters:
 

 Three Months Ended June 30,

 2013  2012
 (Dollars in Thousands)
Revenues:  

Rental Tools $ 82,022  36%  $ 65,002  36 %
U.S. Barge Drilling 38,301  17%  33,292  19 %
U.S. Drilling 17,910  8%  —  — %
International Drilling 83,182  37%  76,923  43 %
Technical Services 4,586  2%  3,708  2 %

Total revenues 226,001  100%  178,925  100 %
Operating gross margin:        

Rental Tools gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 38,347  47%  42,450  65 %
U.S Barge Drilling gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 20,011  52%  14,500  44 %
U.S. Drilling gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 3,640  20%  (533)  n/a
International Drilling gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 20,327  24%  18,240  24 %
Technical Services gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 127  3%  (258)  (7)%

Total operating gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 82,452  36%  74,399  42 %
Depreciation and amortization (32,280)    (27,959)   

Total operating gross margin 50,172    46,440   
General and administrative expense (22,378)    (7,420)   
Gain on disposition of assets, net 517    1,368   

Total operating income $ 28,311    $ 40,388   

Segment operating gross margins excluding depreciation and amortization, are computed as revenues less direct operating
expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization expense, where applicable; segment operating gross margin percentages are
computed as operating gross margin as a percent of revenues. The operating gross margin amounts and operating gross margin
percentages should not be used as a substitute for those amounts reported under U.S. GAAP. However, we monitor our business
segments based on several criteria, including operating gross margin. Management believes that this information is useful to our
investors because it more accurately reflects the cash flow from operations generated by each segment. Such operating gross margin
amounts are reconciled to our most comparable U.S. GAAP measure as follows:
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Rental
Tools  

U.S.
Barge

Drilling  
U.S.

Drilling  
International

Drilling  
Technical
Services

Three Months Ended June 30, 2013 (Dollars in Thousands)
Operating gross margin (1) $ 25,149  $ 16,660  $ (666)  $ 8,925  $ 104
Depreciation and amortization 13,198  3,351  4,306  11,402  23
Operating gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization $ 38,347  $ 20,011  $ 3,640  $ 20,327  $ 127

Three Months Ended June 30, 2012          
Operating gross margin (1) $ 31,251  $ 11,014  $ (1,623)  $ 6,056  $ (258)
Depreciation and amortization 11,199  3,486  1,090  12,184  —
Operating gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization $ 42,450  $ 14,500  $ (533)  $ 18,240  $ (258)

(1) Operating gross margin is calculated as revenues less direct operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization
expense.

Rental Tools
Rental Tools segment revenues increased $17.0 million, or 26.2%, to $82.0 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared with

$65.0 million for the second quarter of 2012. The increase was primarily due to the contribution by ITS of $24.2 million of revenues
for the period from April 22, 2013 (the acquisition date) through June 30, 2013. The addition of revenues from ITS was partially offset
by a decrease in revenues from our U.S. rental tools business resulting from an overall decline in utilization and higher average
discounts due to reduced U.S. land activity and increased competition in certain key locations. This was partially offset by the impact of
increased rentals to offshore Gulf of Mexico customers and higher repair revenues and sales of tools.

Rental Tools segment operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, decreased by $4.1 million, or 9.7%, to
$38.3 million in the 2013 second quarter compared with the $42.5 million for the second quarter of 2012. Gross margin, excluding
depreciation and amortization, for ITS was $5.2 million. Gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, for our U.S. rental
tools business was $33.1 million for the 2013 second quarter compared with $42.5 million for the 2012 second quarter. The decline in
margins was primarily due to an increase in discounts resulting from a softer U.S. land market and lower margins on repairs, sales of
tools and pipe, and inspections and parts.

U.S. Barge Drilling
U.S. Barge Drilling segment revenues increased $5.0 million, or 15.0%, to $38.3 million for the second quarter of 2013

compared with $33.3 million for the second quarter of 2012. The increase in revenues was due to a higher average dayrate for the U.S.
barge rig fleet. Dayrates increased as a result of shorter duration contracts, as well as our ability to deliver high levels of performance
and contractual arrangements that allow us to renegotiate dayrates during multi-well contracts.

The U.S. Barge Drilling segment's operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased $5.5 million, or
38.0%, to $20.0 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared with $14.5 million for the second quarter of 2012. The increase in
operating gross margin was mostly driven by the increase in average dayrates for the U.S. barge rig fleet as described above.

U.S. Drilling
U.S. Drilling segment reported revenues of $17.9 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared with zero for the second

quarter of 2012. The increase in revenue relates to both of our AADU rigs being fully operational by the end of the first quarter of
2013. The first of the two AADU rigs commenced drilling operations and began generating revenue in early December 2012 and the
second AADU rig commenced drilling operations and began generating revenue in February 2013. Both rigs were under construction
during the 2012 second quarter and thus, not generating income. Additionally, in February 2013 we began supporting ExxonMobil's
Santa Ynez Unit offshore platform operations located in the Channel Islands region of California.

U.S. Drilling segment operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased $4.2 million to $3.6 million for
the 2013 second quarter compared with a loss of $0.5 million for the 2012 second quarter, primarily due to the contributions from the
AADU rigs and the California O&M contract described above and both AADU rigs being fully operational by the end of the first
quarter of 2013.
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International Drilling
International Drilling segment revenues increased $6.3 million, or 8.1%, to $83.2 million for the second quarter of 2013

compared with $76.9 million for the second quarter of 2012. The higher revenues are primarily due to an increase in revenues from
O&M contracts partially offset by a decrease in drilling revenue generated by the operation of rigs that we own.

O&M revenues increased $7.2 million, or 29.2%, to $31.7 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared with $24.5 million
for the second quarter of 2012, primarily due to the commencement of a third O&M operation related to our Sakhalin contract and
higher reimbursable revenues associated with our service contracts in Sakhalin. Of these revenues, approximately $10.9 million and
$6.1 million were attributable to reimbursable costs for the three month periods ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which
added to revenues, but had marginal impact on operating margins.

Revenues related to Parker-owned rigs decreased $0.9 million, or 1.7%, to $51.5 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared
with $52.4 million for the second quarter of 2012. This was primarily due to lower revenue per day, partially offset by revenue realized
on the execution of a contract in the 2013 second quarter that allowed us to bill our customer for maintaining our Caspian sea barge rig
on standby during prior periods and contribution of revenues from two previously idle rigs in the Eastern Hemisphere.

International Drilling operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased $2.1 million, or 11.4%, to
$20.3 million during the second quarter of 2013 compared with $18.2 million for the second quarter of 2012. The increase in operating
gross margin was primarily due to increased revenues generated from our O&M operations Colombia and the realization of revenue for
our arctic class barge rig, as described above, partially offset by increased operating costs in Latin America.

Technical Services
Technical Services segment revenues increased $0.9 million, or 23.7%, to $4.6 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared

with $3.7 million for the second quarter of 2012. The increase is primarily due to increased activity under the vendor services phase of
the Berkut project which started during the 2012 third quarter. Additionally, there were revenues from two new projects that
commenced during the second half of 2012 and the 2013 first quarter, respectively. Partially offsetting the revenue increase was the
completion of a pre-FEED project at the end of the second quarter of 2012.

Operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, was $0.1 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared with
a loss of $0.3 million for the second quarter of 2012. The increase is primarily the result of increased revenues on the new projects
discussed above. Partially offsetting the increase in operating gross margin are expenses relating to the transition of the Berkut
platform project into its final documentation stage. The Technical Services segment incurs minimal depreciation and amortization
primarily related to office furniture and fixtures.
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Other Financial Data

Gains on asset dispositions for the second quarter of 2013 and 2012 were $0.5 million and $1.4 million, respectively, and were
primarily the result of asset sales during each period. We periodically sell equipment deemed to be excess or not currently required for
operations.

Interest expense increased $1.8 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared with the second quarter of 2012. This was due to
a $2.6 million increase in debt related interest expense due to higher interest on the additional $125.0 million of 9.125% Notes sold in
the second quarter of 2012, which have a higher interest rate than our 2.125% Notes that were repaid during the second and third
quarters of 2012, and interest expense related to the $125 million Term Loan entered into in connection with the ITS Acquisition.
Additionally, we experienced a $2.5 million decrease in interest capitalized on major projects resulting from the completion of the two
new rigs in Alaska which increased overall interest expense. The increase in interest expense is partially offset by the reduction in
amortization of debt discount related to the 2.125% Notes. Interest income during the 2013 second quarter was $2.2 million primarily
related to interest earned on an IRS refund received during the quarter.

General and administration expense increased $15.0 million for the second quarter of 2013 compared with the second quarter of
2012. The increase is primarily the result of approximately $11.4 million of costs related the ITS Acquisition in April 2013 (see Note 2
- Acquisition of ITS), $1.4 million of incentive compensation and $1.0 million of costs related to training and implementation of our
enterprise resource planning system.

Income tax expense was $11.2 million for the second quarter of 2013 as compared to $9.8 million for the second quarter of 2012.
The increase in current period tax expense is primarily due to a shift in the mix of foreign and domestic operations pre-tax earnings
from $29.9 million in the 2012 second quarter and $19.6 million in the 2013 second quarter. In addition, our tax expense was $1.9
million higher during the second quarter due to non-deductible acquisition-related transaction costs and recorded expenses of $0.6
million related to prior period returns filed during the quarter.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 Compared with Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues increased $37.7 million, or 10.6%, to $393.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with revenues
of $355.5 million for the comparable 2012 period. Operating gross margin decreased $29.7 million, or 29.6%, to $70.8 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with operating gross margin of $100.5 million for the comparable 2012 period. We
recorded net income attributable to controlling interest of $8.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared with
$46.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012.

The following is an analysis of our operating results for the comparable periods:
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 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2013  2012
 (Dollars in Thousands)
Revenues:  

Rental Tools $ 139,105  35%  $ 131,286  37 %
U.S. Barge Drilling 68,165  17%  61,127  17 %
U.S. Drilling 29,545  8%  —  — %
International Drilling 147,832  38%  155,673  44 %
Technical Services 8,509  2%  7,408  2 %

Total revenues 393,156  100%  355,494  100 %
Operating gross margin:        

Rental Tools gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 70,555  51%  87,104  66 %
U.S Barge Drilling gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 32,433  48%  25,195  41 %
U.S. Drilling gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 3,967  13%  (999)  n/a
International Drilling gross margin excluding depreciation and
amortization 25,123  17%  44,747  29 %
Technical Services gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 483  6%  (11)  — %

Total operating gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization 132,561  34%  156,036  44 %
Depreciation and amortization (61,792)    (55,578)   

Total operating gross margin 70,769    100,458   
General and administrative expense (35,261)    (12,917)   
Gain on disposition of assets, net 1,665    1,860   

Total operating income $ 37,173    $ 89,401   

Segment gross margins, excluding depreciation and amortization, are computed as revenues less direct operating expenses, and
less depreciation and amortization expense, where applicable; segment operating gross margin percentages are computed as operating
gross margin as a percent of revenues. The operating gross margin amounts and operating gross margin percentages should not be used
as a substitute for those amounts reported under U.S. GAAP. However, we monitor our business segments based on several criteria,
including operating gross margin. Management believes that this information is useful to our investors because it more accurately
reflects cash generated by segment. Such operating gross margin amounts are reconciled to our most comparable U.S. GAAP measure
as follows:

 
Rental
Tools  

U.S.
Barge

Drilling  
U.S.

Drilling  
International

Drilling  
Technical
Services

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 (Dollars in Thousands)
Operating gross margin (1) $ 46,656  $ 25,417  $ (4,719)  $ 2,983  $ 432
Depreciation and amortization 23,899  7,016  8,686  22,140  51
Operating gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization $ 70,555  $ 32,433  $ 3,967  $ 25,123  $ 483

Six Months Ended June 30, 2012          
Operating gross margin (1) $ 64,853  $ 18,171  $ (3,170)  $ 20,615  $ (11)
Depreciation and amortization 22,251  7,024  2,171  24,132  —
Operating gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization $ 87,104  $ 25,195  $ (999)  $ 44,747  $ (11)

(1) Operating gross margin is calculated as revenues less direct operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization
expense.

Rental Tools

Rental Tools segment revenues increased $7.8 million, or 6.0%, to $139.1 million during the six months ended June 30, 2013
compared with $131.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase was primarily due to the contribution by the ITS
Acquisition that contributed $24.2 million of revenues as well as an increase in repair revenues and tools sales and revenues from
equipment repairs passed along to our customers in our U.S. rental tools business. These increases in revenue were partially offset by a
decrease in rental revenues from our U.S. rental tools business
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resulting from an overall decline in utilization and higher average discounts due to reduced U.S. land activity and increased competition
in certain key locations.

Rental Tools segment operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, decreased $16.5 million, or 19.0%, to
$70.6 million during the six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with $87.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. Gross
margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, for ITS was $5.2 million. Gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, for
our U.S. rental tools business was $65.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared with $87.1 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2012. The decline in margins was primarily due to the increase in discounts as previously described and lower
margins on repairs, sales of tools and pipe, and inspections and parts.

U.S. Barge Drilling
U.S. Barge Drilling segment revenues increased $7.0 million, or 11.5%, to $68.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013,

compared with $61.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase in revenues was primarily due to higher average
dayrates for the U.S. barge rig fleet.

U.S. Barge Drilling segment operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased $7.2 million, or 28.7%,
to $32.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with $25.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012,
primarily driven by the increase in average dayrates for the U.S barge rig fleet as described above.

U.S. Drilling
U.S. Drilling segment revenues were $29.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with zero for the 2012

comparable period. The increase in revenue relates to both of our AADU rigs being fully operational by the end of the first quarter of
2013. The first of the two AADU rigs commenced drilling operations and began generating revenue in early December 2012 and the
second AADU rig commenced drilling operations and began generating revenue in February 2013. Both rigs were under construction
during the first six months of 2012 and thus, not generating income. Additionally, in February 2013 we began supporting ExxonMobil's
Santa Ynez Unit offshore platform operations located in the Channel Islands region of California.

U.S. Drilling segment operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased $5.0 million to $4.0 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with a loss of $1.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012, primarily due to
both AADU rigs being fully operational by the end of the first quarter of 2013 and the California O&M contract described above.

International Drilling
International Drilling segment revenues decreased $7.8 million, or 5.0%, to $147.8 million for the six months ended June 30,

2013 compared with $155.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The lower revenues are primarily due to decreased
revenues generated by the operation of rigs that we own, partially offset by increased revenues from O&M contracts.

O&M revenues increased $18.6 million, or 40.0%, to $64.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with $46.4
million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase in revenues from our O&M contracts was primarily due to higher
reimbursable revenues associated with our service contracts in Sakhalin. Of the total O&M revenues, approximately $23.4 million and
$10.5 million were attributable to reimbursable costs for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which added to
revenues but had marginal impact on margins.

Revenues related to Parker-owned rigs decreased $26.4 million, or 24.2%, to $82.9 million for the six months ended June 30,
2013 compared with $109.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012, primarily due to a decrease in utilization in the Eastern
Hemisphere region and a decline in revenue per day and demobilization revenue in our Latin America region. The decrease was
partially offset by the contribution of drilling contract revenues from a previously idle rig that has been added to our Sakhalin Island
operations and another previously idle rig added to our Kazakhstan operations.

International Drilling operating gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, decreased $19.6 million, or 43.9%, to
$25.1 million during the six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with $44.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The
decrease in operating gross margin for the six months ended June 30, 2013 was primarily due to a decline in margins for Parker-owned
rigs resulting primarily from a decline in utilization in our Eastern Hemisphere region and a decline in O&M margins due to lower
rates associated with our service contracts in Sakhalin Island as we transitioned from higher value operating contracts to cost-plus
contracts beginning in the third quarter of 2012.
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Technical Services

Technical Services segment revenues increased $1.1 million, or 14.9%, to $8.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013,
compared with $7.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase in revenues was primarily due to increased activity
under the vendor services phase of the Berkut project which started during the third quarter of 2012. Additionally, there were two new
projects that commenced during the second half of 2012 and the 2013 first quarter, respectively. The revenue increase was partially
offset by the completion of a pre-FEED project at the end of the second quarter of 2012.

Operating gross margin for this segment was $0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, compared with a nominal
amount for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase is primarily the result of increased revenues on the new projects
discussed above, partially offset by expenses related to the transition of the Berkut project into its final documentation phase. The
Technical Services segment incurs minimal depreciation and amortization primarily related to office furniture and fixtures.

Other Financial Data    

Gain on asset dispositions for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $1.7 million and $1.9 million, respectively, and
was primarily the result of asset sales during each period. We periodically sell equipment deemed to be excess or not currently required
for operations.

Interest expense increased $3.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared with the six months ended June 30,
2012. This increase was due to a $4.6 million increase in debt-related interest expense due to higher interest on the additional $125
million of 9.125% Notes sold in the second quarter of 2012, which have a higher interest rate than our 2.125% Notes that were repaid
during the second and third quarters of 2012 and we incurred interest expense related to the $125 million term loan entered into in
connection with the ITS Acquisition. Additionally, we experienced a $4.4 million decrease in interest capitalized on major projects
resulting from the completion of the two new rigs in Alaska which increased overall interest expense. The increase in interest expense
is partially offset by a decrease in amortization of debt discount on the 2.125% Notes. Interest income during the six months ended
June 30, 2013 was $2.2 million primarily related to interest earned on an IRS refund received during the quarter.

We incurred a loss on extinguishment of debt of $1.6 million during the six months ended June 30, 2012. This loss resulted from
the repurchase of $122.9 million of the 2.125% Notes pursuant to a tender offer on May 9, 2012. The loss included $0.4 million
premium paid to repurchase the 2.125% Notes prior to maturity and $1.2 million accelerated amortization of the related debt discount
and debt issuance costs.

General and administration expense increased $22.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared with the six
months ended June 30, 2012 due primarily to $14.4 million of costs related to the ITS Acquisition in April 2013 (see Note 2,
Acquisition of ITS). Additionally, we experienced an increase of $3.1 million related to higher incentive compensation costs during the
six months ended June 30, 2013 and increased costs of approximately $2.2 million related to training and implementation of our new
enterprise resource planning system.

Income tax expense was $9.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to $24.5 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2012. The decrease in 2013 period tax expense is driven primarily by the decrease in pre-tax income from $70.9
million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 to $18.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
We periodically evaluate our liability requirements, capital needs and availability of resources in view of inventory levels,

expansion plans, debt service requirements and other operational cash needs. To meet our short and long term liquidity requirements,
including payment of operating expenses and repaying debt, we rely primarily on cash from operations. However, we have recently, as
well as in the past sought, and may in the future seek, to raise additional capital. We expect that for the foreseeable future, cash
generated from operations, after financing the ITS Acquisition, will be sufficient to provide us the ability to fund our operations,
provide the working capital necessary to support our strategy, and fund planned capital expenditures.

In connection with the ITS Acquisition, on April 18, 2013, the Company entered into a $125 million Term Loan, fully funded by
Goldman Sachs Bank USA as Sole Lead Arranger and Administrative Agent (the Goldman Term Loan). The Goldman Term Loan
bears interest on the outstanding principal amount at a rate per annum equal to (a) for the period from April 18, 2013 to June 30, 2013
(or May 9, 2013, in the event certain marketing materials have not been provided by May 9, 2013) (the Initial Step-Up Date), 6.5%,
(b) for the period from the Initial Step-Up Date to April 15,
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2014, 7.5%, and (c) from April 15, 2014 and all times thereafter, 8.5%. Quarterly interest payments are due on the last business day of
each March, June, September, and December. In addition, a Duration Fee of 1.00% is payable on June 30, 2013 for the aggregate
principal amount of the the Goldman Term Loan outstanding on such date. The Goldman Term Loan is senior unsecured debt of the
Company and has a maturity of April 18, 2018. Subsequent to the end of the second quarter, we entered into the first amendment to the
Goldman Term Loan on July 19, 2013. The amendment revised the effective date for both the Initial Step-Up Date and the Duration
Fee to August 15, 2013.

On July 30, 2013, we issued $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.50% Senior Notes (7.50% Notes) pursuant to an
Indenture between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. Net proceeds from the 7.50%
Notes offering were used to repay the $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of our Goldman Term Loan, to repay $45.0 million
of Term Loan borrowings under our Credit Agreement and for general corporate purposes (see Note 14 - Subsequent Events).

Cash Flows

As of June 30, 2013, we had cash and cash equivalents of $69.6 million, a decrease of $18.3 million from December 31, 2012.
The primary uses of cash for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 were $118.0 million, net of cash acquired for the ITS
Acquisition and $63.5 million for capital expenditures. The primary source of cash for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 was
$125.0 million of proceeds from issuance of the Goldman Term Loan and $45.9 million from operating activities.

As of June 30, 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents of $77.5 million, a decrease of $20.4 million from December 31, 2011.
The primary uses of cash for the six month period ended June 30, 2012 as reflected on the consolidated condensed statements of cash
flows were $122.9 million for the repurchase of 2.125% Notes, $109.5 million for capital expenditures, a $12.0 million payment on our
Term Loan, and $3.5 million of debt issuance costs attributable to the issuance of an additional $125.0 million of 9.125% Notes in
April 2012. Major capital expenditures for the first six months of 2012 included $48.5 million on the construction of two new rigs for
work in Alaska and $41.6 million for tubular and other rental tools for our Rental Tools segment. The primary source of cash for the
second quarter of 2012 was $130 million from the issuance of $125 million additional 9.125% Notes at 104.0% of par and $95.5
million from operating activities.

Financing Activity

On March 22, 2010, we issued $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 9.125% Notes, and on April 25, 2012, we issued an
additional $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 9.125% Notes. Interest is payable on the 9.125% Notes on April 1 and
October 1 of each year until maturity. The 9.125% Notes mature on April 1, 2018.

On December 14, 2012, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Credit Agreement) consisting of a senior
secured $80.0 million revolving credit facility (Revolver) and a senior secured term loan facility (Term Loan) of $50.0 million. The
Credit Agreement amended and restated our existing credit agreement dated May 15, 2008. The $50.0 million Term Loan borrowed
under the facility amortizes at $2.5 million per quarter which began on March 31, 2013, thus $10.0 million is classified as a current
obligation on our consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2013. Our obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by
substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries, each of which have executed guaranty agreements; and are secured by first priority liens
on our accounts receivable, specified barge rigs and rental equipment. The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and
negative covenants with which we were in compliance as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012. As of June 30, 2013, there was
$45.0 million outstanding on the Term Loan and $2.1 million in letters of credit outstanding. There were no amounts outstanding under
the Revolver. The Credit Agreement matures on December 14, 2017.

Additionally, on July 19, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our Credit Agreement which, among other things, permits us or
any of our subsidiaries (other than certain immaterial subsidiaries) to incur indebtedness pursuant to additional unsecured senior notes
in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $250.0 million at any one time outstanding; provided that any such notes shall (x) have
a scheduled maturity occurring after the maturity date of our senior secured credit facility, (y) contain terms (including covenants and
events of default) no more restrictive, taken as a whole, to us and our subsidiaries than those contained in our senior secured credit
facility and (z) have no scheduled amortization, no sinking fund requirements and no maintenance financial covenants. In addition,
pursuant to the amendment, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Credit Agreement, to the extent we repay the
principal amount of term loans outstanding under our senior secured credit facility, until April 30, 2014 we may reborrow, in the form
of additional term loans, up to $45 million of the principal amount of such outstanding term loans we have repaid, provided that such
$45 million reborrowing amount will decrease by $2.5 million at the end of each quarter beginning September 30, 2013 and ending
March 31, 2014, such that the reborrowing availability on April 30, 2014
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would be $37.5 million. The Term Loan was repaid on July 30, 2013 with net proceeds from the issuance of $225.0 million aggregate
principal of 7.50% Senior Notes due September 1, 2020. (See Note 14 - Subsequent Events).

We had total long-term debt, including the current portion, of $595.0 million as of June 30, 2013 which consisted of:
$425.0 million aggregate principal amount of 9.125% Notes, plus an associated $4.1 million in unamortized debt
premium;
$125.0 million Term Loan for the purchase of ITS;
and
$ 45.0 million under our Term Loan, $10.0 million of which is classified as
current.

As of June 30, 2013, we had approximately $147.5 million of liquidity, which consisted of $69.6 million of cash and cash
equivalents on hand and $77.9 million of availability under our Revolver.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our future contractual cash obligations as of June 30, 2013:

 

 Total  
Less than

1 Year  
Years
1 - 3  

Years
3 - 5  

More than
5 Years

 (Dollars in Thousands)
Contractual cash obligations:          

Long-term debt — principal (1) $ 595,000  $ 10,000  $ 20,000  $ 565,000  $ —
Long-term debt — interest (1) 247,287  49,753  100,513  97,021  —
Operating leases and capital leases (2) 55,976  16,376  16,190  10,665  12,745
Purchase commitments (3) 14,815  14,815  —  —  —

Total contractual obligations $ 913,078  $ 90,944  $ 136,703  $ 672,686  $ 12,745
Commercial commitments:          

Standby letters of credit (4) 2,055  2,055  —  —  —
Total commercial commitments $ 2,055  $ 2,055  $ —  $ —  $ —

 

(1) Long-term debt includes the principal and interest cash obligations of the 9.125% Notes, the Goldman Term Loan and the Term
Loan. The remaining unamortized premium of $4.1 million on the 9.125% Notes is not included in the contractual cash
obligations schedule.

(2) Operating leases consist of agreements in excess of one year for office space, equipment, vehicles and personal
property.

(3) Purchase commitments outstanding as of June 30, 2013 are primarily related to rig upgrade
projects.

(4) We have an $80.0 million revolving credit facility. As of June 30, 2013, we had no borrowings under the Revolver and
$2.1 million of availability has been used to support letters of credit that have been issued, resulting in $77.9 million of
availability.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any unconsolidated special-purpose entities, off-balance sheet financing arrangements or guarantees of third-

party financial obligations. We have no energy or commodity contracts.
 

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET
RISK

There has been no material change in the market risk faced by us from that reported in our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the SEC on March 1, 2013. For more information on market risk, see Part II, Item 7A in our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND
PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures - In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15 and
15d-15, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
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procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15,
were effective, as of June 30, 2013, to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or
submitted under the Exchange Act is (1) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and our Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and (2) recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - The SEC's rules permit the exclusion of an assessment of the
effectiveness of a registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as they relate to its internal controls over financial reporting for an
acquired business during the first year following such acquisition, if among other circumstances and factors there is not adequate time
between the acquisition date and the date of assessment. As previously noted in this Form 10-Q, we completed the ITS Acquisition, on
April 22, 2013. ITS represents approximately 11% of our total assets as of June 30, 2013 and approximately 6% and 8% of revenues
and net income (loss), respectively, for the six month period then ended. The ITS Acquisition had a material impact on internal control
over financial reporting. Management's assessment and conclusion on the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures as of June 30, 2013 excluded an assessment of the internal control over financial reporting of ITS. We are now in the
process of integrating ITS' operations including internal controls and processes. We are in the process of extending to ITS our Section
404 compliance program under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the applicable rules and regulations under such Act. Other than
changes resulting from the ITS Acquisition discussed above, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during our most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 

ITEM 1. LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding legal proceedings, see Note 11, “Contingencies,” in Item 1 of Part I of this quarterly report on Form
10-Q, which information is incorporated herein by reference into this item.

 
ITEM 1A. RISK

FACTORS
There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in Item 1A. Risk Factors of our annual report on Form 10-

K for the year ended December 31, 2012 except as set forth below.

If we fail to integrate or realize the expected benefits from the ITS Acquisition, or if we incur any liabilities as a result of
such transaction, our business, results of operations and profitability may be adversely affected.

We may not realize the expected benefits of the ITS Acquisition because the business may not perform financially as expected
or because of integration difficulties and other challenges. The success of the ITS Acquisition will depend, in part, on our ability to
successfully integrate the acquired business with our existing businesses. The integration process is anticipated to be complex, costly
and time-consuming. Complications with the integration could result from the following circumstances, among others: failure to
implement our business plan for the combined business; unanticipated issues in integrating and applying our internal control and other
systems; failure to retain key customers; failure to retain key employees of ITS; and operating risks inherent in the acquired business. In
addition, we may not accomplish the integration smoothly, successfully or within the anticipated costs or timeframe. Furthermore, we
may not be able to achieve anticipated cost savings or other synergies or realize growth opportunities that we expect with respect to our
operation of ITS’ business. Additionally, the ITS Acquisition subjects us to potential liabilities we would not otherwise be exposed to. In
particular, our due diligence process with respect to the ITS Acquisition suggests that its internal controls may have failed to prevent
violations of potentially applicable international trade and anti-corruption laws, including those of the United Kingdom. We are currently
investigating such violations and will, as appropriate, make any identified violations known to relevant authorities, cooperate with any
resulting investigations and take proper remediation measures (including seeking any necessary government authorizations). We do not
at this time have any estimate of our potential liability. If we experience difficulties with the integration process or if the anticipated
growth opportunities and other potential synergies of the ITS Acquisition, or if we incur any liabilities related to such acquisition, our
business, results of operations and profitability may be adversely affected.

 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF

PROCEEDS
The Company currently has no active share repurchase programs. Periodically, the Company purchases shares on the open

market to meet our employer matching requirements under our 401 (k) Retirement Savings Plan. Additionally, when restricted stock
awarded by the Company becomes taxable compensation to personnel, shares may be withheld to satisfy the associated withholding
tax liabilities. Information on our purchases of equity securities by means of such share withholdings is provided in the table below:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
 

Period

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased  

Average Price
Paid Per Share (1)

April 1-30, 2013 24,481  4.12
May 1-31, 2013 327  4.81
June 1-30, 2013 867  4.47

Total 25,675  4.14

(1) Average share price paid per share is calculated as the weighted average price derived
from the closing price on the date of vesting.
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ITEM 5. OTHER
INFORMATION

On August 1, 2013 we reported net income of $10.0 million, or $0.08 per diluted share,  on revenue of $226.0 million for the
quarter ended June 30, 2013. On August 6, 2013 we corrected this report to reflect net income of $8.3 million, or $0.07 per diluted
share,  on revenue of $226.0 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2013. This correction reflects additional expense of $2.5 million
($1.7 million, net of tax) for the three and six months periods ended June 30, 2013, related to the ITS Acquisition.

46



Table of Contents

PART II

ITEM 6.    EXHIBITS
 
(a) Exhibits: The following exhibits are filed or furnished as a part of this report:

Exhibit
Number  DESCRIPTION
   

10.1 —

Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated April 22, 2013, among ITS Tubular Services (Holdings) Limited, as Seller, Ian
David Green, John Bruce Cartwright and Graham Douglas Frost, as joint administrators of the Seller, ITS Holdings,
Inc. and PD International Holdings C.V., Parker Drilling Offshore Corporation and Parker Drilling Company
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April
23, 2013).

   
10.2‡ — First Supplemental Indenture, dated June 21, 2013, among Parker Drilling Company, as Guarantor and The Bank of

New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee.
   

10.3 —

Term Loan Agreement, dated April 18, 2013, among Parker Drilling Company, as Borrower, and Goldman Sachs
Bank USA, as Administrative Agent, Syndication Agent, Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Lead Bookrunner and the
several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time parties thereto (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2013).

   

10.4 —
First Amendment to Term Loan Agreement dated July 19, 2013, among Parker Drilling Company, the lenders party
thereto, Goldman Sachs Bank USA and certain other parties thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2013).

   

10.5 —

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2013, among Parker Drilling
Company, as Borrower, certain Subsidiaries of the Borrower, as Guarantors, the Lenders party thereto, and Bank of
America N.A., as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Parker Drilling Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2013).

   
10.6 — Employment Agreement dated May 3, 2013 between Parker Drilling Company and Christopher Weber (Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 14, 2013).
   

10.7 —
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Incentive Agreement between Parker Drilling Company and Christopher Weber
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May
14, 2013).

   31.1* — Gary G. Rich, President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director, Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification.
   31.2* — Christopher T. Weber, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Rule 13a-14(a)/15d- 14(a) Certification.
   32.1* — Gary G. Rich, President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director, Section 1350 Certification.
   32.2* — Christopher T. Weber, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Section 1350 Certification.
   101.INS‡ — XBRL Instance Document.
   101.SCH‡ — XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document.
   101.CAL‡ — XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
   101.LAB‡ — XBRL Label Linkbase Document
   101.PRE‡ — XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.
   101.DEF‡ — XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

* Filed herewith.
‡ Previously included as part of Parker Drilling Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013 filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2013, which this Amendment No. 1 amends.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

 
     

  PARKER DRILLING COMPANY
     

Date: August 13, 2013 By:  /s/ Gary G. Rich

 
 

  
Gary G. Rich
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director

     
  By:  /s/ Christopher T. Weber

 
 

  
Christopher T. Weber
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
 

Exhibit
Number    DESCRIPTION
    

10.1 —

 

Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated April 22, 2013, among ITS Tubular Services (Holdings) Limited, as
Seller, Ian David Green, John Bruce Cartwright and Graham Douglas Frost, as joint administrators of the
Seller, ITS Holdings, Inc. and PD International Holdings C.V., Parker Drilling Offshore Corporation and
Parker Drilling Company (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Parker Drilling Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2013).

    
10.2‡ —  

First Supplemental Indenture, dated June 21, 2013, among Parker Drilling Company, as Guarantor and The
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee.

    

10.3 —

 

Term Loan Agreement, dated April 18, 2013, among Parker Drilling Company, as Borrower, and Goldman
Sachs Bank USA, as Administrative Agent, Syndication Agent, Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Lead
Bookrunner and the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time parties thereto
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on April 23, 2013).

    

10.4 —
 

First Amendment to Term Loan Agreement dated July 19, 2013, among Parker Drilling Company, the
lenders party thereto, Goldman Sachs Bank USA and certain other parties thereto (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2013).

    

10.5 —

 

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2013, among Parker
Drilling Company, as Borrower, certain Subsidiaries of the Borrower, as Guarantors, the Lenders party
thereto, and Bank of America N.A., as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 22, 2013).

    

10.6 —
 

Employment Agreement dated May 3, 2013 between Parker Drilling Company and Christopher Weber
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on May 14, 2013).

    

10.7 —
 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Incentive Agreement between Parker Drilling Company and Christopher
Weber (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Parker Drilling Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on May 14, 2013).

    31.1* —   Gary G. Rich, President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director, Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification.
    

31.2* —
  

Christopher T. Weber, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification.

    32.1* —   Gary G. Rich, President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director, Section 1350 Certification.
    32.2* —   Christopher T. Weber, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Section 1350 Certification.
    101.INS‡ —   XBRL Instance Document.
    101.SCH‡ —   XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document.
    101.CAL‡ —   XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
    101.LAB‡ —   XBRL Label Linkbase Document
    101.PRE‡ —   XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.
    101.DEF‡ —   XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

* Filed herewith.
‡ Previously included as part of Parker Drilling Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013 filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2013, which this Amendment No. 1 amends.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

PARKER DRILLING COMPANY
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION

I, Gary G. Rich, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q/A for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2013, of Parker Drilling
Company (the registrant);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a — 15(e) and 15d — 15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance Eregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 13, 2013

 
/s/ Gary G. Rich

Gary G. Rich
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director



EXHIBIT 31.2

PARKER DRILLING COMPANY
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION

I, Christopher T. Weber, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q/A for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2013, of Parker Drilling
Company (the registrant);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a — 15(e) and 15d — 15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 13, 2013

 
/s/ Christopher T. Weber

Christopher T. Weber
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigned officer of Parker Drilling Company (the Company) hereby certifies, to such officer’s
knowledge, that:

1. The Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 (the Report) fully complies with the
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of
operations of the Company.

Date: August 13, 2013

 
/s/ Gary G. Rich

Gary G. Rich
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure statement.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigned officer of Parker Drilling Company (the Company) hereby certifies, to such officer’s
knowledge, that:

1. The Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 (the Report) fully complies with the
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of
operations of the Company.

Date: August 13, 2013

 
/s/ Christopher T. Weber

Christopher T. Weber
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure statement.


